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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$158,060,000 (2018: HK$477,789,000). The
Group’s revenue was principally derived from the exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment of approximately
HK$158,060,000 (2018: HK$477,784,000). During the year, the
money lending business segment did not contribute any revenue to
the Group (2018: HK$5,000), and the sales of food and beverages
segment did not contribute any revenue to the Group (2018: Nil)
either.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$72,352,000,
compared to a profit of approximately HK$27,544,000 during last
year. It was mainly due to the net effect of non-recurrence of the
one-off revenue recognition in year 2018 of natural gas sales for the
years 2009-2017 and its correspondence amortisation. Loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company was 0.76 HK cents (2018:
earnings per share of 0.29 HK cents).

Business Review

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas Segment

The Petroleum Contract

The Company'’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into a
petroleum contract with China National Petroleum Corporation
("CNPC") for the drilling, exploration, development and production
of oil and/or natural gas within the specified site located in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC (the “Petroleum Contract”).
The Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years commencing 1 June
2009.

BRARR

AANERXREFS((EEE ) IRETEERA
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the site. In the event that
any oil field and/or gas field is discovered within the site, the
development and production costs shall be borne by CNPC and
China Era in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The managements have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies. On 6 December 2017,
China Era and CNPC entered into a supplemental and amendment
agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) extending the First Phase exploration period to 5
December 2017 and agreeing on the aggregation of the costs
incurred by CNPC between 1 June 2009 and 5 December 2017 with
the pre-contract costs. The costs incurred between 1 June 2009 and
31 December 2015 was in the amount of RMB651,653,000 (mainly
including three completed wells, reconstruction of natural gas
processing plant and the operating costs incurred during the period).
In 2018, the cost incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 31
December 2017 in the amount of approximately RMB94,042,000
was confirmed. The filing of the Overall Development Program
("ODP") was completed on 8 July 2019, and the development period
of the Kashi Project commenced with effect from 9 July 2019.

On 20 June 2019, China Era and CNPC entered into a second
supplemental agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “2nd
Supplemental Agreement”) which agreed the amount of profit
sharing between 2009 and 2017, which was consistent with the
revenue recognised in the 2018 financial statements.

The Status of Gas Sales Agreements

As at 31 December 2019, the Company was still negotiating the Gas
Sales Agreements (“GSA") with CNPC. The terms of the GSA include
the quantity of volume commitments, gas quality, price terms,
delivery obligations and delivery point, etc. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020, the GSA was signed
on 27 April 2020.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Segment Performance

During the year, this operation together with the natural gas
distribution operation in Karamay, Xinjiang contributes revenue of
approximately HK$158,060,000 (2018: HK$477,784,000) and the
segment loss before income tax was approximately HK$137,024,000
(2018: profit before income tax HK$163,523,000). Impairment losses
on intangible assets, exploration and evaluation assets and property,
plant and equipment in the amounts of HK$60,000,000 (2018:
HK$95,000,000), HK$1,000,000 (2018: HK$36,000,000) and
HK$33,000,000 (2018: Nil) respectively were recognised during the
current year, principally due to the change of production volume
forecast to reflect the current market situation.

The results of operations in exploration, production and distribution
of natural gas segment and costs incurred for exploration and
evaluation assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown as
below:

(@)  Results of operations in exploration, production, and
distribution of natural gas segment

T EBRE

FN - REBRABRAIBKRARD HES
& iUk 25 49 158,060,000 T ( — & — )\ & :
477,784,000 7T ) M F W5 3Bk TS B BT &S
B4/ 137,024,0008 T (=2 — \F : RFIE
T A& N 494 163,523,00058 7T) » NEE DI
REFTEHENETLEE  BEETHEE - MU
EME BEAKSEBEREBBE? A
60,000,000 7T ( = Z — J\ 4F : 95,000,000
JC) * 1,000,000/ JT(=Z—/\4F : 36,000,000
77T ) } 33,000,000 L ( —E— N\F: £#)
FEmRRREE RIS E S TB R A FTek

KAREE EEERDHES 2 EEELE - U
N BN IR B s E W E R B R B B EE A 2 AR
BT

@ XAREE LERDHDEZLERE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH#ET
Revenue Wz 158,060 477,784
Direct cost HERAR (42,184) (6,466)
Other income EH A A 1,457 368
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HMAX (24,316) (24,520)
Operating expenses KBRS (46,569) (28,737)
Depreciation e (15,474) (3,522)
Written off on exploration and evaluation W E IR M E B E
assets (37,673) =
Impairment of exploration and evaluation BR R h B ERE
assets (1,000) (36,000)
Impairment and amortisation of intangible 2 & 2R (B K 3 44
assets (76,458) (212,727)
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (1,151)
Impairment of property, plant and WE - B RFERE
equipment (33,000) -
Finance cost BEKA (19,867) (1,496)
Results of operations before income tax BRFTIS TR & R AE (137,024) 163,523
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

(b)  Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets acquisitions
and exploration activities

Exploration cost

Information of Gas Reserves

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group engaged an
independent third party consulting firm to perform the review on the
reserves which was conducted in accordance with Petroleum
Resources Management System, an international recognised reserve
standards and guideline. The following table summarised the
estimates of Group’s 49% net entitlement interests of the gas reserve
in the Petroleum Contract as at 31 December 2019.

(b) BERFGEERERGFEHELEZ
2N

2019 2018
—2-nE  ZEFN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FT
19,282 162,326

BE-_ZT-NEF+_A=+—HILFE  F&%
BEFELE=TERAR((BERR])HF
EfFTETEN  ENRBEAMEREERSR
(BIFR R A IR E RIS 1T - TRBUEA
HAENRAREBEERFEREEN49% FAEHE
RmA b 8T

Natural gas

AR

(BVP)

(+1EZHK)

Proved (1P) FE(P) 6.83
Proved and Probable (2P) BE MRS (2P) 9.19

Reserves are determined through analysis of geological and
engineering data which appear, with reasonable certainty, to be
economically productive in the future from known and discovered oil
and natural gas reservoirs under existing economic and operating
conditions. Both deterministic and probabilistic methods are used in
reserves estimation. When probabilistic method is used, there should
be at least a 90% probability (for Proved Reserve or "1P") that the
quantities actually recovered will equal or exceed the estimate and
there should be at least a 50% probability (for Proved and Probable
Reserve or “2P") that the quantity actually recovered will equal or
exceed the estimate.

ZEFERT MM BN A HMAARE -
KBHENTRBIEN DN - WRE B ATEE
BIREMETRENGE T AEERBERAR
REETERFAR - EENRRTEHEN
RFEM[ET - ERBYMREET  BZAED
0% WAEE([EFEFMESL1P)) - BERFAREA
ERFRHBBAETNEZBEZRD 50%NAE
E(RENMIRERFEK2P])  BERRRUER
ENHEBBIAE
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Group did not record any revenue from the sales of food and
beverages business segment in 2019 and 2018. The segment loss
before tax was approximately HK$ 1,460,000 (2018: HK$1,990,000).
No revenue was recorded during the year, mainly due to the Group'’s
intention to reduce reliance on sales of food and beverage. We will
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resource as and when required.

Money Lending Business

During the year, the Group did not generate any revenue (2018:
HK$5,000) from the money lending business operated by its indirect
wholly owned subsidiary, Zhong Neng Finance Ltd., a licensed money
lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163, Laws of Hong
Kong). The segment loss before tax was approximately HK$168,000
(2018: HK$241,000). The Group continued to adopt a stringent
credit policy to mitigate the credit risk arising from the money
lending business, resulting in a decrease in the revenue when
compared to last year.

Financial Review
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have outstanding
secured bank borrowings (2018: HK$65,931,000). The cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were approximately HK$226,798,000
(2018: HK$68,084,000). The Group's current ratio (current assets to
current liabilities) was approximately 59.7% (2018: 109.6%). The
ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the Group was approximately
36.9% (2018: 32.2%).

As at 31 December 2019, the convertible notes due in 2041 has an
outstanding principal amount of HK$679,670,000. These convertible
notes do not carry any interest, but carry the right to convert the
principal amount into ordinary shares of the Company. The
conversion price is HK$0.168 per share (subject to adjustments) and
a maximum number of 4,045,654,761 shares may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
convertible notes in full. During the year, no convertible note was
converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

HERMRER XL

RIBE-NERZZE—/\F AEEWESH
ER M RBEEE D PRGBS o BRELA
S EBETIE 49 51,460,000 T( —ZF — )\ & -
1,990,000/ 7T) - AFE NI MEFS I - =
ZREAAAREB R DHIHER SRR AKX
B AEBBEEBRREERE  YRHKER
BT AR ERDE

BEER

RAFE  AEBEBEMEZENBAG P
BEMEARARMEENREER T EELT
A F (=T — N\F :500087T) ' ZAABH
RIEEEEDIE 163 ZEHUEAED) M 233
FERUEA o BRI E0E 18 A %) 168,000 7T
—EF—)\F 1 241,000/87T) - AEBEER
MEBEEEBRRAREREEREENEER
G BRUREE E—FERD -

Bt %5 01 R
RBEE  MBEFRRELXRE

RIB-HE+-A=1+—8 KNEBIEWH
AEEEFERBTEBE(ZZE—NF:
65,931,000 ) - XEBE s Re MEFERRE
47 /226,798,000 T( = & — J\ F:
68,084,00087L) - AEEBEZ mBLE(RBE
ELREBAME) DA TR(ZF— )\ F:
109.6%) - NEBE B ABHAEE RN A
36.9% (ZZF—/)\F :32.2%) °

RZB-AE+A=+—8 —EN—F3|
Bz AT AR IR v R1EE A £ 58/4679,670,000
BT Z AR ER AT E - AW AR
BASHERBARARLEE HBEAER
0.16878 7T (] TR %) + i {4 AT R A% EARFT A
CHBMEERHTE TRERETES
4,045,654,761 Bx 15 o F RN B A IR AR R AR
HBRQR L@ -
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

In June 2015, the Group commenced legal actions against the
holder(s) of the convertible notes but in May 2018, a Consent Order
was granted by the Cayman Court regarding the discontinuation of
the litigation, as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charge of Assets

None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowings as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
Account receivables of HK$439,596,000 were pledged as security for
bank borrowings).

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative
contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the year.
However, management will monitor foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.

Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$522,640,000 (of which approximately HK$199,564,000 would
be borne by CNPC) and HK$121,000,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$104,834,000 and HK$118,650,000) in respect of capital
expenditure of exploration, production and distribution of natural gas
segment and capital contributions in a subsidiary respectively.

R-ZF—RFAA  AEERABRBRER R
BEARBEREFR  ER_T—/\FHA - H
SHEZGORRULRRBEHRES  FEH
KR A TS RRMITE3S

EERH

FEER _Z-NF+_A=+—BLEEM
EECEMARTEERERZER(ZE
— J\5F © 439,596,000 78 7T H) F& Y BR SR 1 /5
RITIEFRZIER) »

SMNEE LB

AEENEIZZEMRASFTEMNTE EEYH
B EE R B = 2R B BT R ARKE KK
B EXRBRETEBA AR ANEEH
T AREN-ERRERLEERIARLAH
WEEBKEEY REREEYEAR - £
A ERARZHRERKFE  AEEFALER
PRARE R R MAI ZERITETEAGLD - A
m- EEESTNEBINERR  BEEE
BERERINEE R o

BAESE

R-ZBE—-NE+_A=Z+—BAEBREIAR
DEH IR - EEFMDHAOERFAT A RE —
MIBARZEED R BEREED
522,640,0007% 7T ( & A 47 199,564,000 7 JT H
o B A 5 B & & ) & 121,000,000 0 (=%
— J\ 4F : 104,834,000/ Jt 118,650,000/
TT) e
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of 50
(2018: 41). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REGARDING THE
MODIFIED OPINION

Qualified opinion in 2019

The auditors of the Company issued a qualified opinion in the
independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019. In view of the qualified opinion, the Board would like to
provide the following additional information.

As set out in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “2018 Annual Report”), the previous auditors
of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in the independent
auditors’ report relating to the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Further information regarding the disclaimer of opinion last year is
set out on pages 11 to 15 of the 2018 Annual Report.

FREE

R_E—NFR_FE-NF+_A=+—8"
AEBEWETMEARAERE -

BEEH

RZBE-NEFE+ZA=+—B AEEHES0
H(ZE-N\F :4NR)BT - AKERE 2%
MEKE 2 TIERRE  TIEER  HXERNK
RITHISEHIEES -

RREEIER 2B IME

“E-NEFRERR

ARRZBMCRERAREBE_T—NF
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REMBEALAREER ERZREE
R EBERERREHEATEINER -

BOARREHE_TE-NF+_A=+—HL
FENFR((=ZB—NEER]) TE - AR7A)
FEZEMRERAEEHE S —N\F+=
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MREHATRRERER FREAFIER
BEEME—FTERERN T NFERENZE
158 °

10 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7



CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

As stated in the independent auditors’ report, the existing auditors
have not been been provided with sufficient appropriate audit
evidence: (1) as to whether the revenue from sales of natural gas of
approximately HK$368,903,000 arising from its interests in the
Petroleum Contract for the exploration and evaluation period from
2009 to 2017 should be recorded in the year ended 31 December
2018 or before; (2) to ascertain the recoverable amount of the
balance of the intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets
as at 31 December 2018, as to whether these balances were fairly
stated at HK$1,250,254,000 and HK$474,224,000, respectively, as
at 31 December 2018, and the impairment losses and amortisation
recorded in the year ended 31 December 2018; and (3) on the
deferred tax charge recorded in the year ended 31 December 2018.
Any adjustments of these items may affect the comparability of the
current year's figures with the corresponding figures, affect the
opening balance of these items, result in consequential effects on the
written off, impairment losses, depreciation and amortisation for the
year ended 31 December 2019, result in consequential effects on the
Group’s financial performance and cash flows, and result in
consequential effects on the deferred tax credit recorded in the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The qualified opinion is because of the comparative figures, opening
balance and consequential effect of the bases for disclaimer of
opinion relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in the previous year. These bases for qualified opinion
did not arise from different judgments in the valuation and
impairment of balance sheet items in the current year between the
Company’s Directors and the existing auditors. The audit committee
concurred with the Company’s Directors in the valuation and
impairment of the balance sheet items in the current year and the
previous year. Since the bases for qualified opinion this year is
principally the consequence brought forward from the bases for
disclaimer of opinion in the previous year, barring unforeseen
circumstances which may arise after the date hereof over the relevant
balance sheet items, the Company’s Directors do not expect these
bases of qualification to recur in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2020.

WANAIE AR BN RS FTAE A - 3R A SRR
RENFZD - BENEFTER  (WRZZEZTR
FE_ZT—+FHHERTHEE - RE A H
BRI RAREE W 4368,903,000
BrIRAERSABEZE - ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—
HRZAIMFE  QBEEN=ZE—/\F+=A
—t—HEFEERMEATHEESRENT
WElSHE  NABR T \F+_A=+—
HZEEBES A FH541,250,254,000 %
T K 474,224,000 0 REHEZF — N\ F
TZA=T—HLEFERREBBEREHE: &
REEEE—E—N\F+_A=+—HLFE
REEERIEE R - ZFHB MNEAFAZE T
FEBRNHSTEMARKTNLY  FEZS
HENBYHE  thEEE—_2—hF+=
A=+—HIFENME RAERBE TEK
MEEAAETE  SRASENUBERER
BeneELHEEE  YHEE-_Z—NF
T A=+ HUEFERHMNBEERIBRRE

EHEERE -

ZREBBERRBARLEART PEHREEH
AEE - FESEHMBERRBTOTIER
BAZEENHESE - ZEREBERZEE
WIFKAARREZRRERBMEAFEE
ZE R ERE R W HE KRB TR HE - Fix
REERBEMFEREFHEEABRERDN
A RBERRRBERTER —H - ARNSF
MREBERZEETZR F—FFEREBERL
EEGROER  WMERRARE AR AT REH
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Impairment loss on Kashi Project Assets

The impairment of the carrying value of the intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and the exploration and evaluation
assets relating to Kashi Project (the “Kashi Project Assets”) was
principally due to the change in production volume forecast to reflect
the current market situation. The management made assumptions
including the timing and development plan of the latest ODP
(including the capital expenditure for additional wells and related
facilities), commercial production and signing of GSA, future gas
prices, productions costs (fixed and variable) and production volume
forecast (based on the Group’s previous estimation on the natural
gas resources of the Kashi field).

Except for the change in post-tax discount rate from 16% (equivalent
to pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%) in 2018 to 14% (equivalent to
pre-tax discount rate of 15.8%) in 2019 and the change in
production volume forecast to reflect the current market situation as
explained above, there were no other significant changes in the value
of the inputs and assumptions used in the valuation as compared to
those previously adopted. The change in discount rate was mainly
due to the decrease in equity risk premium in China from 10.8% in
2018 10 8.76% in 2019.

In arriving at the fair value, the valuer has considered three generally
accepted approaches, namely, market approach, cost approach and
income approach. Since market approach is not appropriate (as no
similar transactions in the public market can be identified as
comparable transaction) and cost approach is not appropriate (as it
ignores the economic benefits of the ownership of the business), the
valuer has adopted income approach — discounted cash flow
method to assess the fair value of the project. A discount on lack of
marketability (DLOM) of 30% was applied in the fair value
assessment, which is in line with market practice. In compliance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, during an impairment testing of
assets (other than financial assets), the recoverable amount should be
the greater of (i) the fair value less costs of disposal, and (i) the value-
in-use (VIU), which is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Therefore, after assessing the fair value and VIU in the
valuation report, the Company has used the VIU, being the higher of
the two figures, in determining the recoverable value of the Kashi
Project Assets.

B EEEEZRERBR

HIRMIREA ((BAERE ) ARANELEE MY
REFEEEZRAERENIZHAREETR
ARE(CARRERMIGEN - EEEH &K
MRRBRAE T R 2R KA G B (BIRRIME
ARMEEREZEANAS) BELEERESE
ERWZE  KRRRARER  EEXAN(EE
KA 8) RAEEEER (IREBARNKEAEHET
HAXRARER Gt E) FHELERER -

BREEBIRER T N\FMN16% (HERK
HAIBA IR E195%) 8B E T — NFMN14%
(FEERBR AR X 15.8%) K0 EX AR
ESEANERME B ATSERN - @A
HENEAIMRNEEFRER 2 BREREZRIATE
MEMRLE WAL MBS - BIREFE )
FEARFPROBRARBREER - —/\FH
10.8% FEFE_Z—NFEHL76% °

REBQATER HEMECEE=ZEARA
& BTG « BRAE RIRACE - AR TIBA
Y EE(AREARMSE LY EA MR AR
BUBERXGZHEURS)  MEARENRTEE
(REZBESHERE 2 CEMNT) « HER
BRMWAE — BRIRIB & RE A AT HZE
B2AFEAE -RAFEEFEPEAZHRE
™ 35 7% 48 1% B 28 (DLOM) 30% J3 75 & Th 15 18
Bl o RIEBBGTERFEI6REERE - NE
E(EREERINBERSE - oJiko ¢ 5EE
BOAFEEREERA  ki)FEAEEIU)
(ABESEAE)  MEREBENDBREERKE
BEMGEFARRESTRE  FARANMREA
RMEEHEEEREEFERBROE TS
) BRIREEIRME - A - IMEERSFTE
ANEBEREREER  AARRETRMTE
BEEZAIROEESCKBFERERGIR
EHEPzR=E)

12 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7



CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

Going Concern Basis

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has suffered a loss
of HK$73,491,000 and at the end of reporting period, its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$302,925,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2019 are mainly
attributable to exploration and evaluation cost payables in the
amount of HK 419,069,000 (31 December 2018: HK$353,956,000).
The directors of the Company are of the view that the Group will be
able to successfully persuade these contractors not to insist on
repayment before the full operation of exploration, production and
distribution business in Kashi. However, there is no certainty that
these contractors will not demand repayment before the full
operation of exploration, production and distribution business in
Kashi.

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including (i)
financial support from a shareholder not to demand repayment
within 12 months; (i) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on repayment of the construction cost
payables before the full operation of exploration, production and
distribution business in Kashi; and (iii) the Group being able to raise
adequate funding through bank borrowings or otherwise. Taking
into account the above assumptions, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve
months from 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee’s view

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the key
audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgments regarding
the valuation of the Kashi Project Assets and the going concern basis
of the financial statements.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Removal of audit modification

CNPC has already settled the entire preliminary profit sharing
entitlement of the Group for gas sales in 2018 either in cash or by
offsetting of payables owed to CNPC. Regarding the settlement of
profit sharing entitlement of the Group for gas sales between 2009
and 2017, CNPC has substantially settled in cash or notes after the
signing of a second supplemental and amendment contract to the
Petroleum Contract (the “2nd Supplement Contract”) on 20 June
2019. The ODP filing was completed on 8 July 2019 and the GSA
was signed on 27 April 2020. In addition, the Group engaged an
independent third party consulting firm to perform an review on the
gas reserves which was conducted in accordance with Petroleum
Resources Management System, an international recognised reserve
standards and guideline.

The perceived uncertainties on the audit modifications in 2018 have
been addressed in 2019. The Directors will continue to negotiate
with banks and other financiers, financial institutions and potentially
interested investors with the view to obtaining new funding whether
by way of equity or debt financing to improve of the Company’s
financial position and/or liquidity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group’s production facilities are principally situated in Kashgar
city (also known as Kashi) and Karamay city (also known as Kelamayi)
of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and its offices are situated in
Korla city (also known as Kuerla), Xinjiang and Beijing. As disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 10 March 2020, travel
restrictions and other public health measures (the “Public Health
Measures”) including the extension of Chinese new year holiday
and quarantine requirements of travelers were imposed in various
areas in China since late January 2020 in an attempt to contain the
novel Coronavirus epidemic (the “Epidemic”), as a result of which
certain staff of the Group were restricted from traveling or otherwise
returning to work after holiday. That having said, since the Group
supplies natural gas through pipelines without heavy reliance on
human resources, the impact of the Epidemic and Public Health
Measures on the Group’s operations should be minimal. The
Company will continue to monitor the development of the Epidemic
and its impact, if any, on the Company’s operations, and make
further announcement(s) as appropriate if necessary.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEEAEEENRR DT

PROSPECTS

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas

The project details and key milestones for the Kashi Project were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2010. In
essence, the Petroleum Contract covers an exploration period of up
to six years (which was already extended by CNPC pursuant to the
Supplemental Contract), a development period and a production
period. The development period commences on the date after the
date of filing completion of the ODP and ends on the date of the
completion of the development operations required by the ODP to
be completed during the development period. The end of the
development period also signifies the commencement of the
commercial production of the project and hence the production
period, which runs for fifteen years for an oil field and twenty years
for a gas field (subject to extension with the approval of the
government).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 July 2019,
the filing of the ODP of Kashi Project was completed on 8 July 2019
and the development period commenced with effect from 9 July
2019. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April
2020, the GSA was signed on 27 April 2020. The Company’s
management will continue to follow up with potential lenders and
investors with the view to secure additional debt and/or equity
funding to finance the further development of the project. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company as and when there is
any significant progress of the Kashi Project.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will assess
the value and performance of this segment from time to time, and
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resources as and when required.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHGSRAEEENRR DT

Money Lending Business

The management will continue to look for high quality borrowers in
order to minimise the risk of default. The management has taken a
cautious approach in money lending business in view of the Group'’s
current financial position.

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholders. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 62, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch talent from
China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong on 29 June
2015.

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Gu Quan Rong, aged 55, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a post-doctoral degree in Organic Chemistry from Nanjing
University in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in
mineral processing from China University of Mining & Technology,
Beijing in 1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oil
and gas. Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate
Professor, Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing
University, and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University,
United States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daging Oilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Qilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECZERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao, aged 53, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2015. He is a lawyer qualified to
practice law in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He holds
a master degree in law from University of International Business and
Economics, China and a bachelor degree in law from Lanzhou
University, China. He has extensive experience in litigation and
arbitration, company law and laws relating to investment, finance,
energy, mining and capital market. From 1989 to 2000, he joined
Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company Limited, an associate of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”), as a member of
their in-house legal department. From 2003 to 2004, he was
appointed as the senior legal supervisor of another group company
of Sinopec. Since 2005, he started his own private legal practice and
joined various law firms in the PRC as a partner.

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying, aged 51, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business law
from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.

Mr. Lee Man Tai, aged 43, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of professional experience in
accounting and auditing. He worked in audit firms between 2000
and 2006, and has occupied the positions of chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several listed companies
in Hong Kong between 2006 and 2016. He is an independent non-
executive director of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 1581) and Rizhao Port Jurong Co Ltd (Stock code: 6117) which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a representative for type
1 and 6 regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Overview

Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance AR T NHEIZR T 2D EEANKFERIER
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of EEHeERBITCEXT AT EZTHERK
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe 7% - B FIMBEIRS X E A TE B ARATAB
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the — AESE i H ¥ F5E1E - Jra] 3| B &HE
Company in effective supervision and control on its business &&# - BAIREFFES KNEE -

operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

1. Corporate Governance Practices

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the "CG
Code”). Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has complied itself with all CG Code except for the
following:

(@ Inrelation to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set
out in writing. During the year, Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the
CEO of the Company. During the year, the position of
chairman is vacated and the Board intends to identify
satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

(b) In relation to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the the annual general meeting (the
“AGM") to answer questions raised up in the meeting.
During the year, the position of chairman is vacated, but
other Directors and members of the audit committee
were present at the AGM to answer questions from
Shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report
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() In relation to A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. For the year under review, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. The management experience,
expertise and commitment of the re-electing Directors
will be considered by the nomination committee of the
Company before their re-election proposals are put
forward to Shareholders. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company's corporate governance practices regarding
Directors’ appointment are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

(d) In relation to A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend the Company’s AGM. Certain non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the Company’s
AGM held on 30 June 2019 due to other business
commitments. However, views expressed by shareholders
at general meetings are recorded and circulated for
discussion by all directors regardless of attendance. The
Company will plan its dates of meetings in advance to
facilitate Directors’ attendance.

Risk Management and Internal Control 2.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems for
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and
assets of the Company at all times. Such systems aim to help
achieving the Group'’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of
reliable financial information. However, the design of the
systems is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or
loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.
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Corporate Governance Report

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information systems
security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO") has reported to
the audit committee from time to time during the year, in
conjunction with key findings identified by the external
auditors, findings and actions or measures taken in addressing
those internal controls. The audit committee in turn reports any
material issues to the Board. The Board, through the audit
committee, also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress
on continuous improvement work of the Company’s internal
control system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

Board of directors

(@)  Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of five members including one executive director,
one non-executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have different
professional and relevant industry experiences and
background so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group'’s business. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive directors representing not
less than one-third of the Board, and two of them are
qualified accountants.

(b)  The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive director
of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines. The names of the
directors and their respective biographies are set out on
pages 17 to 18 of this annual report.
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The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during
the financial year and their individual attendance of are
set out below:

Name Board
#H =g
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEO) B L (7T AeA) 4/4
Dr. Gu Quan Rong Be4EtT 4/4
Mr. Zong Ketao TREUBEL 4/4
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying HIRE S 474
Mr. Lee Man Tai EXREAE 4/4

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group's strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include: (i) proposals
related to potential acquisition, investments, or any
significant capital expenditures; and (ii) formulation of
operational strategies and review of its financial
performance and results and the internal control system.

EEerHETEESH WA
SEREERE R EREE-
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Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend

HERE BELEZEEHE
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BRAEF/
ERERE FMzRe REZRE REAE
N/A T N/AEF N/A TR 01
4/4 il 212 0/1
4/4 mn 22 0/1
4/4 ”n 212 1n
4/4 n 212 n

(d)
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The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

The Company has set up three Board committees,
namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee
particular aspect of the Group’s affairs, details of which
are set out in the relevant sections below.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group’s businesses to management
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of financial statements for Board
approval before publishing, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company.

In relation to A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors have
participated their own professional training by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation
to the business on directors’ duties.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

EEEAHRE

EXe 7 EREERBRARRE
FITZBMMAEEE - MRER
RZBEMRARBEE °

ARREKI=AEEZEE /A
BEVLZES FHREERRERZR
Eg NEEAKREETHEZS
% FBER TR &S o

EREERERAKREZEERERE
AEBAREBEEREER-B
ZEeRREREEBRECEED
XEEHER  REMBHERHEES
ERTIEMER BITESERHA
ZEBRENAR HITEEZA
BEZERRABREERFHE - LR
BTHEBAEMRE - RAIRARG -

HEEFERERERLEEERT
BkEE EEQCHEREZED
FHBMES . R AHEERER
MEFESFHER URERER
RERARBMEHIRTE 3R] I (Efa] %
AABRSESRSAMEZIER -

REBECEERTAFEACSE A
BERCDHELERT S RIEBHE
ERESNEBREMABER 2
HEFHNEXE -

ARBTDERSNEEEENEA
REE WERARREERSR
EEABRBAENAEERRE - R
RREHE SR FETRE

Annual Report 3§ 2019 23



Corporate Governance Report
TtEERHRE

24

(m) The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own Code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. All incumbent Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code through the year.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a
variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(@) As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

(b) The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.
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(©)  The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board's approval.

Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

(@  The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

i.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration;
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ii. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive

for the Company;

v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

(b)  Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying who acts as the chairman of the remuneration
committee, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr.
Lee Man Tai. The majority of members of the
remuneration committee is comprised of independent

non-executive directors of the Company.

() The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings was set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report. The remuneration committee had reviewed and
approved the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and

objectives.

(d) The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis

of their merit, qualification and competence.
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The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group’s share option scheme as described in the
“Report of the directors” is approved at general meeting
of the Company on 25 June 2013 and adopted as the
Group's long-term incentive scheme.

Nomination of Directors

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
the members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of
directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection
and proposed appointment of the Directors are submitted to
the nomination committee of the Company for consideration
prior to Board approval, and the re-election of Directors is
conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria of
assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company
including the attendance of Board meetings and serving on
committees, to bring business experience to the Board and to
contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/
her independence shall be assessed in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall be
evaluated in assessing his/her suitability.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Dr. Gu
Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority
of members of the nomination committee is comprised of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The
nomination committee had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, made recommendations on the
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive directors.
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Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the
auditor of the Company, received HK$850,000 in respect of
audit service provided to the Group. The auditors’
remuneration has been duly approved by the audit committee
and there was no disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee on the selection and appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(a)

The audit committee of the Company was established on
30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012 and 31
March 2016 as disclosed on the Company’s website. As
at the date of this annual report, the audit committee
comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee
Man Tai (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Gu Quan
Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying. Mr.
Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying are certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:

i. to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;
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Vi.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited A

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

¢ significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;
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d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

. the cash flow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;

in regard to vi. above:

a. members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company’s accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.
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vii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

XiV.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal
control systems and to review the Company’s
statements on risk management and internal
control systems (which are included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board,;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;
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xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management'’s response;

xvi. to review the external auditor’'s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management'’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor's management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and as
amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules; and

Xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined by
the Board from time to time; and to conduct interviews
with any director, manager, financial controller upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure.

The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The Group’s financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and the year ended 31 December
2019 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings, if requested by shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll,
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions set out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM of
the Company will be voted by poll, and the poll results will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on or before the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors. During the year, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.
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Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of the requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit of the
requisition the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM,
the Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

The Articles of the Company provides that no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for
election and also a notice by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
registered office or principal place of business in Hong Kong at
least seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.
Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director at the AGM, the following
documents must be validly served at the Company within the
period specified in the Articles, namely:

(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect
a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
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(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be elected,;

(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Investor Relations

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopts a dividend policy, taking into
consideration all circumstances including the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends: (i) the current
and projected financial performance of the Company; (i) the
growth and investment opportunities; (iii) other macro and
micro economic factors; and (iv) other factors or events that
the Board may consider relevant or appropriate from time to
time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and the Articles.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.
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The appropriateness of the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, which in particular include: (i) financial
support from a shareholder not to demand repayment within
12 months; (ii) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on repayment of the construction cost
payables before the fully operation of exploration, production
and distribution business in Kashi; and (iii) the Group being
able to raise adequate funding through bank borrowings or
otherwise. However, the Company has not obtained any
written confirmation that the contractors will not insist on
payment of the construction cost payables until the fully
operation of exploration, production and distribution business
in Kashi. These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubts about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Save as disclosed above,
the Directors are not aware of any other events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
taking into consideration the various factors set out in the
section headed “Additional disclosure regarding the modified
opinion” on pages 10 to 13 of this annual report.
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By the order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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The directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries include
sales of food and beverages and money lending business in Hong
Kong, and exploration, production and distribution of natural gas in
PRC, the details of which are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2019, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed “CEQ’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The above section
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income on pages 56
to 57.

The state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 58 to 59.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 160.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options,
are set out in Note 30 and Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 60 and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2019 are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEBE
The largest supplier BARER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHENES

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer and
alternate director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gu Quan Rong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Ketao

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying

Mr. Lee Man Tai
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Directors
retiring at the upcoming AGM will be eligible for re-election. Further
details of the Directors’ re-election will be set out in a circular of the
Company dispatched together with the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 17 to 18 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2019, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Report of the Directors
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme which was adopted on 28 January 2002
(i.e. before the Company's listing on the Stock Exchange in February
2002) (the "Old Share Option Scheme”) has already expired on 28
January 2012. After its expiry, no further share option can be granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, no
option remained outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme.

Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that directors, employees,
consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisers or
contractors of the Group or an affiliate corporation, or trustee of
trust related to or controlled corporation of any of the foregoing (the
"Eligible Participants”) had made or may make to the Group, and
providing the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives, namely: (i) motivating the Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and (ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
ongoing business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the
Group. A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme can be founded on pages 7 to 17 of the Company’s circular
dated 27 May 2013.

EEBAROBES 2 EF

BRI T X [RE Rt Rt 81 ) — BN EE 2 P AR =t 8
S AR m] S E AR B A R R AN F E A
AV EMZHRERNRB CEEE BB AR
NHEHFESARAHLEEMEMAREE L
AEHER -

RERE R

REFZ R RN FERDB R Z R E 5
BESNT

BT E

ZEE-F-AZFNHBEIXRRRRZEE
ZHFEZRAEBMR LT 28 RN BARERT
S EBRESEDENRN=FE—=F—A
ZHNAHE® - Ehik  EERETITSEH
BHERERE - RARE BH - EEREL
BT 0 B IR R R AT o

ERERETRERE  ARAR-ZZT—ZFX
AZ+HABRTZARGREFRIAE Li@B
— IR AT ) ([ R AEST 8 ) - UARE
AEEREH LB ZES - EE  FHAF
F-HER REG A8 A BREZES
o skE A —EAENEAETTARTE
FE([EEERSEHE]) BAEREL ZER
WAAERSHEEREEALGPHEEAR
mEE WEBRNUTEEZ: (VEBEERS
HMENBLCEERNEE  FRAEEZH &
(i) WB| MR AR T X EFEAE RS HE
BZEBBEFR MZSEAER2EEZERY
AEBZRREEEHN - BREMNBRETEE
BREAZBE  FLEARARAHPAE-_T—=
FRAAZTEHMNBRETIEITE -

42 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7



The New Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running
from 25 June 2013 to 25 June 2023. Under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options
to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for shares of the Company
(“Shares”). Initially, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was
792,112,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the New Share Option Scheme on 25 June 2013. The
maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue, provided that the
maximum entitlement for any grantee being a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or their associates shall be
capped at 0.1% of the shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value based
on the closing price of the shares underlying the options, whichever
is higher). Any grant exceeding these individual limits shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval, with the relevant grantees and their
associates abstaining from voting. The overall limit on the number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion,
there is no general requirement of a minimum period for which an
Option must be held or any performance target which must be
satisfied or achieved before such an Option can be exercised. An
Option shall be exercisable at any time during an exercise period to
be notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that no Option
shall be exercisable later than ten years after its date of grant. The
subscription price of the options must be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a Share. HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible
Participant to the Company on acceptance of an offer of an Option,
which shall be paid within 14 days from the date of offer.
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No share option was granted and exercised during the year under
review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31
December 2019 and 2018. No share option has ever been granted
under the New Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 25 June
2013, nor has the Scheme Mandate Limit has ever been refreshed.
As at the date of this report, 792,112,000 options (representing
8.33% of the existing issued share capital of the Company) are
available for grant under the New Share Option Scheme (i.e. the
Scheme Mandate Limit as originally obtained on the date of approval
of the New Share Option Scheme on 25 June 2013).

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Position

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

REBFEAN  BEBREESERITE B
ZE-NFRZE-NFFTZA=+—8" #
BERTE2BRE BFBEREFEIR-Z
—ZHFRNAZTHRBERMAUAR  ERRTFEM
Bl TEEFERERRE - RARER
B - R AE AR R 81 7] 2 7 792,112,000 17
BB E (R A RRIIREEEITIRA28.33%)
BNt 8N — S —=F A -_+HBE
HEE BIRA] ZFHEIRERE -

FTERRZERZRAR

<

RZEB-NAF+A=+—H8  ARaIEFHK
BARITBA BRI Z ALRARRZ B KR8
FAR D P15 A B 75 R E 1R D] 5 336 IR EA
NAABM AR 2 aE IR BT

REQXTDRGREBRD 2HE

Name of Shareholders

RREB HE

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Ltd.
(Note 1) (HiaF 1)

Cypress Dragons Limited
(Note 2) (Hz£2)

Wang Guoju (Notes 1 & 2)
IBE(MiF1X2)

Nature of interests

miHE

W

Beneficial Owner

Interest of controlled
corporation
REEE R

Number of
shares

BB E

1,860,000,000

970,000,000

2,830,000,000

Total number

Approximate

Number of  of shares and percentage of
underlying underlying issued share
shares shares capital

HE BREKR HEBTRE

ROBE HEROAH R
4,045,654,762  5,905,654,762 62.13%
- 970,000,000 10.20%
4,045,654,762  6,875,654,762 72.33%
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Notes:

1. Based on the disclosure of interest (“DI”) filings, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited (“UK Prolific”) is interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes"”) in the
principal amount of HK$679,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest with
right to convert the Convertible Notes into 4,045,654,762 Shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.168 per Share. Based on the DI filings, UK Prolific is wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Guoju.

2. Based on the DI filings, Cypress Dragons Limited (“Cypress Dragons”), a
controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Wang Guoju, is interested in
970,000,000 Shares.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group'’s business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 37 of this
annual report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company. All
incumbent directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code through the year
under review.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the
Board's performance by diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013
and revised on 31 March 2016.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.
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Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.

Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group. The
Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged
to give their opinions regarding the environmental, social and
governance policies of the Group.

Report of the Directors
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This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued in due
course.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The audit
committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
CG Code. The Group’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, who is of the opinion that such statements comply with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2019 have been audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ijif) SR
ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Corresponding figures

Included in the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
was revenue from sales of natural gas of approximately
HK$368,903,000 arising from its interests in a Petroleum
Contract for the exploration and evaluation period from 2009
to 2017. We have not been provided with sufficient
appropriate audit evidence whether the revenue should be
recorded in the year ended 31 December 2018 or before.

Exploration and evaluation assets, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018 were intangible assets and exploration
and evaluation assets with carrying amounts of
HK$1,250,254,000 and HK$474,224,000 respectively.
Impairment losses of HK$95,000,000 and HK$36,000,000
were recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018 on
intangible assets and exploration and evaluation assets
respectively. Amortisation of approximately HK$117,727,000
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018 on
intangible assets. During the year, certain aforesaid balances of
exploration and evaluation assets were transferred to property,
plant and equipment. Written off on exploration and evaluation
assets of HK$37,673,000 and impairment losses of
HK$33,000,000, HK$60,000,000 and HK$1,000,000 were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019 on property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and exploration and
evaluation assets respectively. Depreciation of approximately
HK$4,877,000 and amortisation of approximately
HK$16,458,000 were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019 on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.

We have been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to ascertain the recoverable amount of aforesaid
balances as at 31 December 2018. There were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves whether the aforesaid balances were fairly stated as
at 31 December 2018 and we have not been provided with
sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the impairment losses
and amortisation recorded in the year ended 31 December
2018 and thus the consequential effect on the written off,
impairment losses, depreciation and amortisation recorded in
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (Continued)
3. Deferred tax

Included in consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 was deferred tax liabilities with carrying
amount of approximately HK$79,268,000 in relation to
exploration costs. Deferred tax charge of approximately
HK$180,902,000 and deferred tax credit of approximately
HK$91,926,000 was recorded for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019 respectively.

Because of the limitation on the point 2 above related to the
exploration and evaluation assets, there were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves whether the aforesaid balances were fairly stated as
at 31 December 2018 and we have not been provided with
sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the deferred tax charge
recorded in the year ended 31 December 2018 and thus the
consequential effect on the deferred tax credit recorded in the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 3 above
might have a consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has suffered a loss of HK$73,491,000 and at the end of
reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$302,925,000. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and
the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Refer to Note 15 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group test the amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of interests in a Petroleum Contract in
relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil
and/or natural gas included in property, plant and equipment of
HK$616,604,000 and intangible assets of HK$1,140,898,000 as at
31 December 2019 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.
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Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (Continued)

Refer to Note 15 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

— Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates);

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external expert and valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the
external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model;
and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets is supported by the available
evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR 3 GTE S

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 8 May 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —Z— NF+_A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE

Direct cost

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Staff costs

Operating lease rentals

Expenses related to short-term leases

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value loss of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value loss of investment properties

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

Written off on exploration and
evaluation assets

Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Other operating expenses

Impairment of goodwill

Finance costs

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax credit/(charge)

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
after tax:

Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR

Notes

HfaF
g 6
BHERAR
EAn g A 7
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2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
158,060 477,789
(42,184) (6,466)
3,205 20,133
(24,316) (24,520)
(16,628) (14,964)
= (3,579)
(6,077) =
(8,535) (3,840)
(7,233) =
(26,758) (13,064)
(442) =
(920) (10,849)
(1,000) (36,000)
(37,673) =
(76,458) (212,727)
(33,000) -
(35,891) (24,059)
= (1,151)
(29,318) (8,474)
(185,168) 138,229
111,677 (111,041)
(73,491) 27,188
(40,297) (73,284)
(363) 882
(114,151) (45,214)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE2—_Z—hWF+-_A=+—HILFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

Notes

fitet
FREMN (BE), 8T

ARBEBA
FEIE RS

THEG2E (EE) Wi
HEE
RABEEA
R

SR (E8), 27
CEAL) 12
— EK

—#F

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF ==
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(72,352) 27,544
(1,139) (356)
(73,491) 27,188
(112,649) (45,740)
(1,502) 526
(114,151) (45,214)
(0.76) 0.29
(0.76) 0.25
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR &

At 31 December 2019 A—Z—AF+-_A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Account and note receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a shareholder
Bank borrowings

Total current liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes

et

15
16
17
18
19
21

22

23

24

25
27
26
28

2019 2018
—®-nE B )\F
HK$’000 HK3$'000
FET FET
639,110 26,603
10,773 =
56,680 57,600
20,120 474,224
1,140,898 1,250,254
100,026 =
1,967,607 1,808,681
148,344 439,596
31,064 61,476
43,391 33,736
226,798 68,084
449,597 602,892
712,367 444,768
10,604 =
29,551 39,363

= 65,931

752,522 550,062
(302,925) 52,830
1,664,682 1,861,511




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2019 R-Z—hF+-_HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF =N\ 52
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FET

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Other payables and accruals H i e~ 308 R FEET A 25 61,692 143,736
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 3,283 =
Convertible notes Al =R 29 79,199 71,467
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBEE 21 = 11,649
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEEE 144,174 226,852
NET ASSETS FEE 1,520,508 1,634,659

Equity R

Share capital iRy 30 475,267 475,267
Reserves i 1,034,437 1,147,086
1,509,704 1,622,353
Non-controlling interests TR ERS 10,804 12,306
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,520,508 1,634,659

FES6E 19 B VA NEHRER T _TFH
ANBEEZESgHEREENZ  YHTIE
EREEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 May
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by: BN ATHE

Zhao Guogiang Gu Quan Rong

it B R B2
Director Director
2 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2—Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EDAEBAER
Convertible Non-
Issued Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
B4 B
BERTRA  RAEBH ROGE REBRE RLERE EHEAR Nt FERER  BREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiET FET FiET FiEx FiET FET FiET FET FiEx
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\F—A—A 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (103,712)  (1,108,481) 1,668,093 11,780 1,679,873
Profit/(oss) for the year REEET/(58) - - - - - 27,544 27,544 (356) 27,188
Other comprehensive (loss) ~ E 4t 2 (E518) /s :
income:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBRES
translation of foreign =2
operations - - - - (73,284) - (73,284) 882 (72,402)
Total comprehensive (loss)/  RNEF2HE (B518),/
income for the year e = = - - (73,284) 27,544 (45,740) 526 (45,214)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\%+t=A
=0 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (176,996)  (1,080,937) 1,622,353 12,306 1,634,659
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE—A—H 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (176,996) (1,080,937) 1,622,353 12,306 1,634,659
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (12352) (72352 (1139)  (73491)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2HESE
Exchange differences on BEGNEBRNER
translation of foreign =8
operations - - - - (40,297) - (40,297) (363) (40,660)
Total comprehensive loss for ~ AEE2EE B
the year - - - - (40,297) (72,352) (112,649) (1,502)  (114,151)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N&TZA
=t-8 475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (217,293)  (1,153,289) 1,509,704 10,804 1,520,508
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest income
Dividend income
Fair value loss on investment properties
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Exchange loss/(gain), net
Reversal of expected credit losses
Loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets
Written off on exploration and
evaluation assets
Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on disposal of subsidiary

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Change in accounts and note receivables

Change in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Change in other payables and accruals

Net cash generated from operating
activities

&

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an iﬁﬁlllbzﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —Z—NWF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

EEBRSRE
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ZERMEELZ

2019 2018

S —N\E
HK$’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
(185,168) 138,229
29,318 8,474
8,535 3,840
7,233 -
(1,103) (43)
(890) (228)

920 10,849
26,758 13,064
205 (256)
(332) (6,268)
442 -

81 -

1,000 36,000
37,673 -
76,458 212,727
33,000 =

- 1,151
- (12,697)

34,130 404,842
291,391 (439,739)
(10,018) 9,162
118,199 84,280
433,702 58,545
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV'B | iﬁ£ I)ILE %

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#Z —Z—

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets

Acquisition of investment properties

Proceeds received from disposal of
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repayment to a shareholder

Repayment to non-controlling interests

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
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HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHETT
(183,706) 411)
(17.876) (162,326)
- (68,449)
3,212 -
1,103 43
890 228
(196,377) (230,915)
(11,531) (1,263)
= (6,222)
45,075 69,903
(110,423) (1,638)
(5.088) (919)
(5.683) =
(87.650) 59,861
149,675 (112,509)
68,084 171,926
9,039 8,667
226,798 68,084
226,798 68,084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Units 5611-5612, 56/F, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company, through its major subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in (i) sales of food and beverages; (i) money lending
business in Hong Kong; (iii) oil and gas exploration and (iv)
distribution of natural gas.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), as at the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company
Limited (“U.K. Prolific Petroleum”) is the single largest
substantial shareholder of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2019

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting year of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior years have been
prepared or presented in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and HK(SIC)-Int 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of a
lease.

The key changes to the Group’s accounting policies
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 16 are summarised
below.

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as
operating or finance leases under HKAS 17 based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group is required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. For leases of other
assets, the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.

As a lessor

HKFRS 16 does not substantially change how a lessor
accounts for leases under HKAS 17.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
profits and comparative information has not been
restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedient to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application.

On transition, the Group has made the following
adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16:

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS16.C8 (b) (ii)
transition. The Group recognised lease liabilities of
HK$6,624,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$6,624,000
at 1 January 2019.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAFITRBEBITEBHER
=[]

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ X8 (5)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) HWHFERRIETEBMER
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued) LR — R =_B—-hE—H—
BEKE)
As a lessor (Continued) ERHBEA (8)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously E"?fﬁ%ﬁ?"ﬁ/‘éﬁ“‘%ﬁ S HHE T

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied is WEEFRFER6.98% °

6.98%.

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 RZZE-N\F+ZA=1t—HEKEN

December 2018

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental IR EE XM RINHHEEEE

borrowing rates

QBRI

Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases &, : R EA%— REHE

Lease liabilities relating to operating leases
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

Analysed as
Current
Non-current
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAFITRBEITEBMER
Bl ()

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AR
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — () BHFHFE KETEBHBR
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued) LR — R =—B—-hE—H—
BEKE)
As a lessor (Continued) ERHBEA (8)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January MN-ZE-hNF—A—BHERAESR
2019 comprises the following: EERESFENT&E
Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
Note HK$’000
HiaF FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating RIERBE BB wERERIE 165
leases recognised upon application RERBBLEHERN
of HKFRS 16 EREEE 6,624
Adjustments on rental deposits RZE-NF—-A—HNHEEZR:
at 1 January 2019 oEEk: (a) -
6,624
By class: RER -
Land and buildings THRETF 6,624
(@)  Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered @ RERAEBMBREERE 165
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under AEBEENNTREEERSRA
leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition of lease BERGHENE17RERNEEET
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments R RER - RIBB BB MEE
relating to the right to use of the underlying assets and were AIE16RIEBTHHENRER  BH
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition. The BaYIFEBEEERAERENM
discounting effect has had no material impact on the carrying TR E SRR A S R B B U R D B
amount of the refundable rental deposits of the Group as at 1 fﬁ FE BAFEUAREEANR_-F

January 2019.

—hFE-A-HNARERERER
EETESATZE -
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. #%

gﬁ REIEE] B R B®

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LR (&
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) HWHFERRIETEBMER
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued) LR — R =_B—-hE—H—
BEKE)
As a lessor (Continued) ERHHEA (E)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts EHR-ZZE—NAF—A—HHOESE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial Hﬁj‘“ﬁj{,ﬂi‘%ﬁ?ﬁ SEEH TR
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not o T”“mib%g‘ﬂ’jlﬁaﬂﬁﬂi"@ﬁ
affected by the changes have not been included. TEA e
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January
2018  Adjustments 2019
R-ZE—h&F
SRR —HR—H
—E-NF REEE
+—A B R E A
=+—H E1655M
EWMMREE B BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets TREEE = 6,624 6,624
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE - 3,168 3,168
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Lease liabilities HEAE = 3,456 3,456
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities Hiit : RIRBEEFE2REE_T—NF

under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,

movements in working capital have been computed based on

opening statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as

disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Except as above, the adoption of HKFRS 16 resulted in no other
impact on the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2019.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these new
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Definition of Material '

and 8
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture ?

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

2 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continues to be permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have significant
impact on the Group's result of operations and financial
positions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which also include
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the
applicable disclosure required by the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board Listing Rules”).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that year,
or in the year of the revision and future years if the
revision affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i)

(ii)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair values.

Going concern basis

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
has suffered a loss of HK$73,491,000 and at the
end of reporting period, its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$302,925,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2019
are mainly attributable to exploration and evaluation
cost payables amounting to HK$419,069,000
(31 December 2018: HK$353,956,000). The Directors
of the Company are of the view that the Group will be
able to successfully persuade these contractors not to
insist on demanding repayment before the fully
operation of exploration, production and distribution
business in Kashi. However, there is no certainty that
these contractors will not demand repayment before
the fully operation of exploration, production and
distribution business in Kashi.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3.

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period
of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying
assumptions including (i) financial support from a
shareholder not to demand repayment within 12
months; (ii) the Group being able to successfully
persuade contractors not to insist on demanding
repayment of the construction cost payables before
the fully operation of exploration, production and
distribution business in Kashi; and (iii) the Group
being able to raise adequate funding through bank
borrowings or otherwise. Taking into account the
above assumptions, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the twelve months from 31
December 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXREFTEEK

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4., EASTBE

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #EKRE (&)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. Relevant activities are activities
that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has joint
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and its expenses, including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly, in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of
the Group is Renminbi. The directors consider that
choosing Hong Kong dollars as the presentation
currency best suits the needs of the shareholders

and investors.

(iij) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values

are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

g

(Continued)

(iii)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements
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31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERSTBE#

(d) Property, plant and equipment d) Y% BERSE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance fees are recognised in profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term

of the lease; if shorter
Furniture and fixtures 4-8 years
Motor vehicles 6-10 years
Natural gas pipeline 10 years
Oil properties over the units of productions

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending for
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the year of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

0

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.

(i) Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of
an exploration and evaluation assets may exceed its
recoverable amount. When one or more of the
following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, the Group shall perform an
impairment test in accordance with HKAS 36.

—  the year for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the year or will expire in the near future, and
is not expected to be renewed.

— substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

— exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area have not led to
the discovery of commercially viable
guantities of natural resources and the Group
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets (Continued)

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to
be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

(g) Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles

2-4 years
3 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

The interests in petroleum production sharing
contracts were amortised on unit of production
method.

B E SRR EE

4. ERSTBE#

(9)

n‘l-ﬁ
31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H
HEW#E)
KEBERERAA ()

(h)

HEHHEREEEEENESH
M RR BRI EGREER B
HRAR/FX - EHHEERTHHEE

BREALATHHE - EEEER
FZ%ETEEECS,OOO%EE’JQF
FEBERHBEA

WEKEERBE BRI R
KB HREE T AEA 2 HE ARY
REEHE - & **fﬂiE\ZfﬁiJ%U\
Ty ARE A B AVERER

BILEE(TEEHE)
(i) EWREBEFEE

B R 2 BB ERNYIRHE
R AGTE - REFAH
RATER BT EE 2R/
BRHIZAVEER BVEE
Z A fE AR A AR
ER - AARAERFHE
A ERRLAFEREEFS
il YN BAPRBRELE
EE ] B IR E R T TR E AT
flr - RARAMERFHZ B
BEZHBENNEHETDERD
REFBRERERRT —R > &
BRAMERFH BV EER
AR R ETRER RSB

OHMEEDKEKNZERRE
ESEETTHEE -

Annual Report &2 2019 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

4,

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(ii)

0]

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment of
assets (other than financial assets) below). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent
of its revaluation surplus.

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

—  Financial assets at amortised cost; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they

satisfy both of the following conditions:

—  the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less loss

allowance for expected credit losses.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if
they do not meet the conditions to be measured at
amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income

on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

)

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group'’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any
derivative features embedded in the compound
instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the
liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity of the
Company, is included in equity as capital reserve. The
liability component is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative components
are measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Company
appears to be less than the fair value of the convertible
notes issued, the Company measures the unidentifiable
services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible notes issued
and that of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based on
their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the year between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one
year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Revenue from contracts with customers

(r)

(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

31 December 2019 —Z—

B E SRR EE

NET=RA=+H

n‘l-ﬁ

4. ERSTBE#

(s)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Annual Report & 2019

BEER

RS ER

REEERAERENMERR
HRBERGHFERS BRE
RET—EARZEEEENE
BEA (REREAFRIN) - R2H
& B a0 e B SR 48R AR5
M FERER o

ERERAIRRIRE £

RARE B 'R 0] (112 1% 1%
pll) > AEEETEREDED
BERNR I LEEREERZER
MRS 2 2 HERBFE -
fi 4% LETF & R IR IR BIFR 518 2
HERBR  AKEHTAELE
BRI -

EBE R R E
FE R BUR NG 8 2 B
B ARFE R B as R R 5

#
e

X

R AE 7l

BREANASE B
BHSASEEREHEEBIL
W R AN BB AR B (AR
HHSHE) R o

89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

4,

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4., EASTBE

(u) Taxation (Continued) (u) BIEE)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and
assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of

the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited

The entity and the entities comprising the
Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERSTBE#

(x) Impairment of assets (other than financial x) EE(TFEEELREE)RE

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except investment properties, investments, deferred tax
assets and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

RERER - ARERIEEF
METEE(REWME  RE BT
MIRE E M EWGRIERIN) 2 BRE
B UHEEEEE ERPRERX
FEECHBERERRE - MiFEE
MBERBR  MEfstEE AR
& NEBEREBRZEE -
TR REfEAHERI B E 2 AT E &
B AAKEEeRTEENBRS
EEEM 2z ATKE S

A El e AR FEERE D EK
AEFREERET 2BSE -1
A EREER - [ ARREER
B AR R BRI 5 30 B P RT i B H B
BRZEERTERR ZHRHARE
KAPFERE -

WEEXRBEEEEM G
e BENEREE  RIBZEE
SREELEM REEMMEER
A E &R o REEBAENEE
MR BRIFHREEEREGHT RS
B EZBERT  BEBERKES
EREERD

R EBENEEER - EESLR
TELEMZREEENEE K
B & 8 < ZIERT B RTHE - HIB IR
ZEREETERBRHZEESIRS
ELXBUNBEFEYERRRE
ERm R EEEE RS E
ZHREE - REEBEZ EBRER
BaiER - RFEAEERERS
IR - BT - REEIRR
Bl %48 A E M EEE M -

Annual Report 4§ 2019 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

4,

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(2)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

The Directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that, after taking into account of all
major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption as
set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

B R B AE R

A T AR RN ERRIR (&)

(a) Impairment on exploration and evaluation

assets, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets, oil
properties and construction in progress under property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets relating to Kashi Project
(“Kashi Project Assets”) for impairment according to
accounting policies stated in Notes 4(f), 4(h) and 4(x) to the
consolidated financial statements. The assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash generating unit is determined based on value-in-use
calculations which require the use of assumptions and
estimates. While conducting an impairment review of the
assets, the Group makes certain judgement in making
assumptions including the volume of gas to be extracted
during the forecast period, the timing in commencing the
development stage and commercial production, future gas
prices and production costs, changes in these estimates may
result in significant variance to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In estimating
the value in use of Kashi Project Assets, the Group has made
reference to the natural gas price based on the selling price
information and other documents exchanged and items
agreed during the joint committee meeting between the
representative of CNPC and the Group. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying amount of Kashi Project Assets was
approximately HK$1,777,622,000 (2018: approximately
HK$1,724,478,000). Impairment losses on Kashi Project Assets
of approximately HK$94,000,000 (2018: approximately
HK$131,000,000) were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Estimation of gas resources and/or reserves

(c)

Engineering estimates of the Group's gas reserves and
resources are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
gas reserves can be designated as “proved”. Proved
reserves estimates will be updated at least annually and
take into account recent production and technical
information about each field. In addition, as prices and
cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of
proved reserves also changes. The change will be
considered as a change in estimation for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, deferred income tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred income tax
assets to be recognised, management is required to
estimate the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary
of the Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability
of each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation of
tax losses. Any difference between these estimates and the
actual outcome will impact the Group's result in the year in
which the actual outcome is determined.

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H
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st TAME RN EZRIR (&)
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31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

100

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Revenue

B2 4 B 2 E A3 ()

A T AR RN ERRIR (&)

(d) Yz

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements, China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Era”) is entitled to gas generated from the Akemomu
Gas Field during the exploration, development and
production period in accordance to the entitlement
method stated on the Petroleum Contract. According to
the Petroleum Contract, all gas produced from the
Akemomu Gas Field should be sold to China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC"), unless otherwise
agreed. By the resolution of the Joint Management
Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperation Project
received on 25 July 2019, the filing of the ODP of the
Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and
the development stage commenced with effect from 9
July 2019. During the year, an agreement was entered
into by CNPC and China Era to specify the expenses
incurred for the development and production to be
assumed by China Era (49%) and CNPC (51%).
Moreover, China Era has reached in-principle consensus
with CNPC on the key terms of the Gas Sales Agreements
("GSA") and the GSA is under the internal approval
progress of CNPC. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 April 2020, the GSA was signed
on 27 April 2020. During the year ended 31 December
2019, 302,272,000 (2018: 244,942,000) cubic meters of
gas was produced by the jointly controlled operation.
Therefore, the Directors considered that the conditions
for revenue recognition were met during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e) Impairment of financial assets

(f)

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement.

5.

31 December 2019 —Z—

B E SRR EE

NET=RA=+H

n‘l-ﬁ

BRI B I B 3t o

A THABE RN ERRIR (&)

(e)

®

THEEZBE

BREBEEBTBREEREIW 5
EMERNeREEREEES
FIELHE - CEREETERER
B R EE R 2 KIS N -
MAKRBERELBEHRAEBZS
BN L LG - ZEhEthE
THREWRES - EREAIEERT
[A) 2 B BIKF -

REREAH  AEBBEBLER
= EMEIRER BB RBERE

[RABLEDZER - FEB VIR
RAKE R Z EERRE S AR

i‘jJD o NEERREILAERE M HA

BERAXB NENAERF 2 ERB
S - ;":P@?EEE&IE&,%
B AR ATIE DT o

REYRZ X FEE

REMEDNENBILER(LEME
TEERAFERIE BEA
FEER  GEMKEZGETE
WRETHMSRRZ A5 - AR
i%%#fmfﬁ%ﬁi&iﬁ%aﬁﬁﬁ

e WEREEMAZBRA
BRIR I T35 A © Ez%ﬁ?&zm

BERAKEREYME 2 A FEE
HIRES  WAHGSWERMZE
W BEBFELARREE -

101

Annual Report & 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'F

31 December 2019 — & —

6.

102

B IEERaR M EE

NE+ZA=+—H1

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate reserves to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group’s internal organization and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural Gas
segment is engaged in the exploration, development,
production and sales of natural gas and the usage of pipeline

for distribution of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision
of loans to third parties.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

31

The segment information provided to the Board for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2019

A IS SRR BE

December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H

BZ2-_Z— N EFEFrR-ZE—N\F+=HA
=+—BIFE RAUEFHARNEEE

and 2018 are as follows: RN D IERINT ¢
(a) Information about reportable segment () ERTEHRSBUWE - BFH
revenue, profit or loss and other BENEEREMER
information
Exploration,
Production Sales of
and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RATHIE - HERRR
EERDH HRBEK BEER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BEZ-Z-n%F+=A
31 December 2019 =t—-HLEEE
Revenue from external customers SMEB% P 7 Uiz 158,060 = = 158,060
Reportable segment loss before K FT{5 % A A] £ 55 26
income tax B (137,024) (1,460) (168) (138,652)
Segment results included: NEBEEELRE
Interest income FEWA 1,083 - - 1,083
Interest expense MBS (19,867) - - (19,867)
Depreciation of property, ME  BERREBETE
plant and equipment (8,241) (245) - (8,486)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets (7,233) - - (7,233)
Amortisation of intangible assets %/ & E# i (16,458) - - (16,458)
Impairment of intangible assets & ER{E (60,000) - - (60,000)
Impairment of property, ME - BERZEHE
plant and equipment (33,000) - - (33,000)
Impairment of exploration MR R EEERE
and evaluation assets (1,000) - - (1,000)
Written off on exploration MR R EEE
and evaluation assets (37,673) - - (37,673)
Income tax credit FrETiER 111,677 - - 111,677
Addition to capital expenditures & AR5 37 120 255,778 - - 255,778
As at 31 December 2019 RN-_E-hE+=A
=t+—-H
Reportable segment assets AERHBEE 2,269,952 1,422 19 2,271,393
Reportable segment liabilities AEfnHask (786,527) (205) - (786,732)
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e B IS SRR B BE

31 December 2019 —E—AF+-F=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDEER @

(Continued)

(a) Information about reportable segment () ERUTEHoBUWE - BFR
revenue, profit or loss and other EBEENESREREMEE (&)
information (Continued)

Exploration,
Production Sales of
and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREE - HERMR
FEERDE REEY WEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-_Z-N\Ft+=A
31 December 2018 =t—HILEE
Revenue from external customers  SMNEEF 7 Uiz 477,784 = 5 477,789
Reportable segment profit/(loss) Bk FT{S 5 Al o] 25 2
before income tax BH,(E8) 163,523 (1,990) (241) 161,292
Segment results included: NEBEE L
Interest income FEWA 23 - - 23
Interest expense MBS (1,496) - - (1,496)
Depreciation of property, ME  BELKSETE
plant and equipment (3,532) (245) = (3,777)
Amortisation of intangible assets i/ & EE i (117,727) = = (117,727)
Impairment of intangible assets & &R R (E (95,000) = = (95,000)
Impairment of exploration and ~ EhiF R EHEEERE
evaluation assets (36,000) - = (36,000)
Impairment of goodwill BERE (1,151) - = (1,151)
Income tax charge ZigEeiEalcy (111,041) = = (111,041)
Addition to capital expenditures & AN 340 162,452 = = 162,452
As at 31 December 2018 RZE— }\ﬂf‘l' A
Reportable segment assets Ejii&’ﬁ%ﬁé& 2,198,733 11,370 20 2,210,123
Reportable segment liabilities AE2RHHBEE (662,637) (90) - (662,727)
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A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. W=
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b)

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Reportable segment (loss)/profit
before income tax

Other income

Fair value loss of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value loss of investment properties

Finance costs

Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses

(Loss)/profit before income tax

BRFT8BiAT (&), EF

B BTS¢ Al A 2 R B8P

(&),

HApdA
BAVEEFABEZZSHE
EZ A FEEEE
HERAFEEFABREZ
TRBEZER
BREMEZ AV EEER

B E R

AOBARMER M ARIRAX

BRPrSELAT (BHR), s F

ko EBE ¥ (&)

AEHI WBRANNEGEHE  EE

REBEZHIER
2019 2018
—E—h&E T \&
HK$'000 HK$°000
Fi#t FBT
(138,652) 161,292
1,748 19,765
(26,758) (13,064)
(442) -
(920) (10,849)
(9,451) (6,978)
(10,693) (11,937)
(185,168) 138,229
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6.

106

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Convertible notes

Amount due to a shareholder
Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

&E

AE2HNMEE

YE N
BEME

Hib WA - BE M
B FRR
BAFEEFABRSEZ
TREE

Re RIRITHEER

mEE

&

A2HDEBAE
B RE

e — R BR R

His AN BN

mEE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7

Wz o &R E (&)

(b) TEHBIBRANEE - EE

REMZHE )
2019 2018
—2-hE —TN\F
HK$°000 HK3$'000
T T
2,271,393 2,210,123
534 474
56,680 57,600
18,459 28,866
31,064 61,476
39,074 53,034
2,417,204 2,411,573
786,732 662,727
79,199 71,467
29,551 39,363
1,214 3,357
896,696 776,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers:

Geographical markets

WEDS

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") HZEAREFME ([HE])

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time

TEER/RE

U 23 FE R B
FAREFE 25

6.

=
=a

LI& 7 &ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ (&)

B

Bt 35 SR R B R

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

(0 2HFXBEFEHZWE:

Exploration,

Production Sales of

and Food and
Distribution Beverages 2019
of Natural Gas Business Total
RAREE - HERRK —E-NE
EERAH RRER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
158,060 - 158,060
158,060 - 158,060
158,060 - 158,060
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6.

108

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WmKkDEHER &)
(Continued)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () DIFREBEBEFEESHZWE : (&)
with customers: (Continued)
Exploration,
Production Sales of
and Food and
Distribution Beverages 2018
of Natural Gas Business Total
RARHIE - HERM —T-N\F
EERDH RIS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Geographical markets ETE
The PRC H 477,784 = 477,784
Major product/service FEER/RE
Natural gas RAR 477,784 = 477,784
Timing of revenue recognition WS A
At a point of time AT 477,784 - 477,784
Sales of natural gas HEXAR
The Group explores and sells natural gas to the customer. AEBBMERAZFHERAR
Sales are recognised when control of the products has HEREmEHEER (B Em
transferred, being when the products are delivered to a RETEPR)  WEAGEFERR
customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could FEMERI RABTEEURER,E
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the TEENE mn 2 B EFT A R TER o
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.
(d) Revenue from major customers: (d REFEEFEFzZWHE:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Exploration, Production and RAREER - £ER
Distribution of Natural Gas segment Sak =Rl
Customer A ZPA 148,452 466,880
Customer B XFB 9,608 10,904
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31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)
(e) Geographic information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current
assets”).

Revenue from external customers

BB DILER &)

okk

pi

(e) HEER

TR AEEEBINEEF 2K
@ RIFRDEECELEHAEER
SN (THEESEREVBEE ) YDA ©

Specified non-current assets

HMBEF 2 W BEFRBDEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE “E-N\F ZB-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FEL FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) Bt (s nE) = 5 62,176 58,959
The PRC H 158,060 477,784 1,805,405 1,749,722
158,060 477,789 1,867,581 1,808,681
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMEWA

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH WA 1,103 43

Dividend income from financial assets at ~ REZAFEBEGTABE SR
fair value through profit or loss BEZREMWA 890 228
Reversal of expected credit losses TBHEEEERE 332 6,268
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB ARG - 12,697
Others Hith 880 897
3,205 20,133
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-HA=+—H

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings (Note 28)

Interest on convertible notes (Note 29)

Interest on other payables (Note 25)

Interest on amount due to a shareholder
(Note 26)

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 27)

8. WMEMRAX

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHTT FET
IRITEERE (HE28) 5,088 919
AR SRR B (A3 29) 7,732 6,978
E b A FIEF B (AfaE 25) 13,160 577

J/_E\'{—J- %HX%/TAIEZ%”/&\
(H1:F26) 1,719 -
HEaBERE (Hit27) 1,619 -
29,318 8,474

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9.

The Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax is stated after

charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration):

Wages and salaries and other benefits
Pension fund contributions

ZHET =
BB EE
EIZEERE

BTRA(BRESEME) :

TE NS REMER
BB R
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BRATS B AT (B518), &R

AEBBRAAISHA(BR),SRF &M

BRT5IEIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
850 925
16,458 117,727
60,000 95,000
16,534 14,895
94 69
16,628 14,964
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31 December 2019 —Z—

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(CHARGE) 10.

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

A IS SRR BE

NET=RA=+H

FrEBE R~ (F0ER)
REMm2ERERANBER

REBEZE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TrET
Current tax — the PRC BEAREIE — AP
Charge for the year REZER = (152)
Deferred tax credit/(charge) EERIEE %, (k)
Origination and reversal of temporary PRl =R 7 EA KD
difference (Note 21(a)) (Btat21()) 111,677 (110,889)
Total income tax credit/(charge) FTSBiE %/ (F0BR) 4 111,677 (111,041)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the RSB ARFENEERTER -

Group did not have assessable profit for the year. Provision for
PRC enterprise income tax are calculated at the tax rate of 25%
(2018: 25%).

The reconciliation between income tax (credit)/charge and

BB BFEHRIELEE - PRCEMS
BB 912 25% (ZE— )\F : 25%) 2

BELHE -

BB (ER), /N EER RS HAT (8

(loss)/profit before income tax is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of temporary differences

Utilisation of tax losses

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Income tax (credit)/charge for the year

?E)//ﬁn*' ZEERWOT
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
R ETSRLAT (B18), S5 F (185,168) 138,229
AEARE16.5% (28— )\ :
16.5%) st E 2 Fi18 (30,553) 22,808
REALFDERER AL E 2 B A A
MERRzHE (10,847) 35,791
IERBIUAC RIEE
(585) (3,568)
TR ES 2 HIETE
3,379 51,090
ERNEBEIMBEE (73,458) 4,549
AR IEEE - 119
AL R ERTIEEER Y
Mg & (46) =
RERZ ABBIRIEEIB 2 T
Fa 433 252
FAMBR(ER), Nk (111,677) 111,041
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31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

11. DIVIDEND 11. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 Bz Z—NWF+-_A=+—BHIFE
December 2019 (2018: Nil), nor has any dividend been IR BRNRE(ZDZE— \F:
proposed since the end of reporting period. /) BREHRETNERREARE -
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. R (B8) BF
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a) BREXR(EE) BF
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FRREN(EIR) BRI R AR T
(loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by mA AFE (BR) SR FBRAER
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BETERRIETFIIEETE -
during the year.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
(Loss)/earnings attributable to owners AN EIHEA AR (E18),/
of the Company A (72,352) 27,544
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
RGEE Ri7EE
Weighted average number of ordinary & 317 & i@ A hAE F 15 &
shares in issue 9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
HK Cents HK Cents
B BN
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FIREKR(ER),&F (0.76) 0.29
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRE#@HEF
For the year ended 31 December 2019, diluted loss per BHE_T-NF+A=+—8I1t
share is the same as basic loss per share as the potential FE - BARIUBRRERZET LB
ordinary shares on convertible notes are anti-dilutive. EAREHTEUR - WEREHSE
BEREREEER -
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31 December 2019 —E—NF+=-A=+—H

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. R (BR) BF @)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued) (b) EREERRE)
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share HE_Z—N\F+_A=+—H1t
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year FE - KRRER AELZ FRE
ended 31 December 2018 is based on the following data: SEAR TR TYESERE -

31 December

2018
—T-N\F
+=ZA=+—8
HK$'000
F&T
Profit attributable to owners of the Company PIN/NETE ¥ = DN Y b 27,544
Adjustments for interest on convertible notes AR R IR 2 F S AEH 5B 6,978
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for ~ BT EZREE RN 2 AR
diluted earnings per share A AR 34,522
Number
of shares
R &8H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT E MR T8
in issue 9,505,344,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on AR EREEEE TRk s o8
convertible notes 4,045,654,761
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FAFTE SR ERF) 2 L@ N
diluted earnings per share FHE 13,550,998,761
HK Cents
b1l
Diluted earnings per share BREERF 0.25
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13.

114

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. ESc#=
The emoluments of each director, equivalent to key REE7 N (BENTESEAE#MS)
management compensation, are as follows: wm

Executive directors
Zhao Guogiang

Non-executive directors
Gu Quan Rong

Independent non-executive
directors
Cheng Chun Ying
Lee Man Tai
Zong Ketao

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_2-NF+-A=+-HLHFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind contributions remuneration

E A 1 RKER
e  REWNGZ at B FEeE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET
HITESE
HEL 1,183 223 = 1,406
FHTES
Brg 120 = = 120
BIHTES
EiRE 120 = = 120
£33 120 = = 120
REbE 120 = = 120
1,663 223 = 1,886
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Executive directors
Zhao Guogiang

Non-executive directors
Ngan Mei Ying (i)
Gu Quan Rong

Independent non-executive
directors
Cheng Chun Ying
Lee Man Tai
Zong Ketao

(i) Ms. Ngan Mei Ying appointed as a non-executive director on 10 April

UTES
el

FHITEE
EEES= ()
RS

BYFHITES
HiRE
FNFH

RS

2017 and resigned on 31 October 2018.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

13.

BEECEHE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BT )\&+-A=1+—RALEFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind  contributions  remuneration

e 2R RIRTER
we REDAS FTEIEK e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FEr FET FiT
1,482 - - 1,482
150 - - 150
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
2,112 - - 2,112

@ BXERIRN _Z—tFNA+HEEZER
HFATEEIN T N\F+A=+—HE
£

BHE-_T-—NF+t-A=+—HLFE "
BEEENEXRNEREEMAME (=F
—NF B - BE_T-NFE+_H
=+—HLEFE ARFAERESEIN
B <& LA 9% 5 152 0 A S 5 I Bl A A DA 22
SHBEBAEE(ZT—\F &) -
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14.

116

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2018: one) director whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2018: four) individuals are set out below:

Salaries and allowances e MoERL
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K1EF 5T 2 5%

The emoluments of the individual fall within the following
band:

14. BEESHFMA L

RAFE AEELESESFMALERE
—&(ZF-)\F: —R)EZF HM=
ERREEXZFI0DH - Her & (=
T—)\F: WB) AL ZHMEIIWT

2019 2018
—2-nE ZEFN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FT
4,576 4,962

56 36

4,632 4,998

BEANZHMNFTIIEE

Number of individuals

EEAH
2019 2018
—2-nE T )\%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FET
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 7L % 1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 7T % 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 =

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments was paid or payable to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

HE_Z—NWErR-_Z—N\F+_A
=+—HLEFE BEREESZSHMA
T(BREEREMES) INREME
A& EARSI MARNEE 2 & sk B
B (E -
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31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019
Transferred from exploration and
evaluation assets (Note 18)
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Transferred from exploration and
evaluation assets (Note 18)

Charge for the year

Disposals

Impairment loss

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

528
RZE-NE-A-R
FE
EnzE

RZE-\EtZA=t-BR

“E-NE-F-H
ERRBRNTIAE
(Kt 18)
hE
HE
EXzE

R=B-ME+ZR=1-8

EHERARE
RE2-\F-A-A
AERER
EiER

RZE-NETZA=1+-AER

—3-n5-F-H

ERRBRRTAE
(Kt 18)

AEEER

i

REER

EnzE

RZE-AE+-B=1-H

R
R=B-ME+ZA=1-R

REB-\F+-A=1-H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BERRKRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Motor  Natural gas Oil ~ Construction
improvements fixtures vehicles pipeline  properties in progress Total
HENERE  HARERE RE  RRREE RbE ERIB L
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
Fér TiEn Fér Tén TEr Fér TiEr
937 906 7170 29,279 - - 38,292
285 126 - - - - m
- 43) 203 (1,234) - = (1,500)
1222 989 6,947 28,045 - - 37,203
- - - - 128,144 - 128,144
279 57 - - 81 236,079 236,496
- - (278) - - - (278)
(64) (27) (13) (750) (1) (4,216) (5,181)
1431 1,019 6,546 21,295 728,224 231,863 996,384
708 627 3907 1812 - - 1114
52 74 927 2,181 - - 3,840
(32) (29 (162) (131) - - (354)
128 672 4,672 4,528 = - 10,600
- - - - 305,692 - 305,692
64 81 839 2,668 481 - 8,535
- - (110) - - - (110)
- - - - 21,000 12,000 33,000
(20) (19 (109) (209) (86) - (483)
m 740 5292 6,987 331,483 12,000 357,274
665 M9 1,254 20,308 39,741 219,863 639,110
494 317 2,275 23517 - - 26,603
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15.

118

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
property, plant and equipment cost of approximately
HK$236,496,000 (2018: HK$411,000) and transfer of
approximately HK$422,452,000 from exploration and
evaluation assets. Provision for impairment loss of
HK$33,000,000 (2018: HK$Nil) was recognised in profit or loss
as the carrying amount of the related cash-generating unit
("CGU") exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) in 2019
as a result of the change in production volume forecast to
reflect the current market situation. These assets are used in
the Group’s Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas segment. The reviews led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$33,000,000 (2018: HK$Nil), that has
been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of
the relevant assets of HK$616,604,000 (2018: HK$Nil) has
been determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax discount rate used
was 15.8%.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7

15. 1% - BERRE @)

iy

BE-_ZT—NEFT+HA=1+—HLEFE"

AEBEEAVE BEREERKETLD
236,496,000 70 (= — J\4F : 411,000
BL)TEBHERFEHEEEEHED
422,452,00087C - BN EBEIRSEL S
M(REeEAEM])) ZEMEBRBER
Bl & &8 - R B &5 18 % #5 33,000,000 7%
TT(ZE—N\F : TEBT)ERNERER -

HRESENEMNE  R_T—NLF -
AEBEHRMIAR (EEKFERWE
19) 2 Al Bl S REHETTARES + SARMLE AT
MHRN - ZEEERARAEBRATH
" EERDHEDE - BRI EERER
A1 /548 33,000,000 T (= ZF — )\ & -
THIT) 0 WERIBIEPER méééfé
2 7] Y B 4 %8616,604,00078 T( =
—N\F =BT IER Hﬁiﬁfﬁé,ﬁé;

BIEEFREETAET - FTA 2 BRI
BRIRE 5 15.8% ©
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Disclosures of lease-related items:

At 31 December:
Right-of-use assets
— Land and buildings
— Motor vehicles

Lease commitments of short-term leases

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash
flow, of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows:
— Less than 1 year
— Between 1 and 2 years

Year ended 31 December

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
— Land and buildings
— Motor vehicles

Lease interests

Expenses related to short-term leases

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

B E SRR EE

n‘l-ﬁ
31 December 2019 —ZE—hF+=-A=+—H
16. EREEE
HEHEBEEB 2HE -
2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
FET
R+=—A=+-—8:
FREEE
— T REF 6,759
—RE 4,014
10,773
R E 2 HEAE 55
AEEHEAGEREIEMBERESREHET
ZREHEDWOT
— LR F 11,261
—1E2F 3,325
14,586
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
FREEEZTEER
— T BT 5,544
—RE 1,689
7,233
HERMES 1,619
BRAEHEEN T H 6,077
HERS KT B 11,760
FREEERNE 11,503

The Group leases various land and buildings and motor
vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods
of 2 to 4 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

AEEERET L RETIALRE -8
EnE—REEA/H2E45F - BEHR
RIEREEE R B IFR RSB R -

HEHZEIL EEINEARHE  EHEEE
TMSREEEMERS
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31 December 2019 —E—AF+-F=+—H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January R—H—AR
Additions NE

Fair value losses N EEEE

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2019 and 2018 have been arrived at on open
market value basis carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited (“APAC"), an independent valuer who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and
has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair

17. REWYEE

2019 2018

—2-nE — N\

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#T FHETT

57,600 =

- 68,449
(920) (10,849)

56,680 57,600
AEBZRENMEN-FB-NER_F
—NF+-A=+—BZATEESS

MEEMEREEMN G RBERBRAR
TRARDAREMZEESEEEZN

ZGEEMEEERATRABERER R
PG ERE M E AN R &R # i

BREVMEZ A FEEBE=-ALETER

value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing FEERFE  c FURFRATEELERZ
fair value balance is provided below: HERWT -
2019 2018
—E-hF T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FUER(E=REEMN
fair value) NEEE) 57,600 =
Additions NE = 68,449
Fair value losses (#) N EEEE®MW (920) (10,849)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring FRER(E=RKFN
fair value) NEEE) 56,680 57,600
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held  (#) BIERRERRTFTEEZ
at end of reporting period Weas kB 1B (920) (10,849)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including
those for assets held at end of reporting period are presented
in fair value loss of investment properties in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

120
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value is determined by applying the direct comparison
approach which is based on prices realised on actual
transactions for properties with similar sizes, characters,
locations and other relevant factors.

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

17.

BEY= &)
DT EETDEREERUEN 58 - I

ENEMEBERRZMERERR ST
BB BRRERLBOZETE -

Effect on fair value

Significant for increase of
Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range inputs Fair value
BABIEIE ¥
EE R EXTABEZRAEE g ATEEZYE AVEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-nF —ZN\F ZBE-RFE ZT)\F
HK$ HK$ HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
Direct comparison method Market selling price (transacted ~ 12,486-17,299  13,156-18,661  Increase 56,680 57,600
price) per square metre
BEHEE FERATHEB(RHER)  12,486-17,299  13,156-18,661 /0 56,680 57,600

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 there
were no transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between Levels of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to market selling price risks at the end of
reporting period for those investment properties. If market
selling price had been 5% higher, the loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have been decreased by
HK$2,834,000 (2018: HK$2,880,000). Had the relevant market
selling price been 5% lower, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss.

RNFEEFEDER LAY EERKR

ErEzasERc(REERARLEE
) e

RBE_Z-NFR-_Z-N\F+_H
=t HLEFE YEEAZEHE=R
SETEMER - AREZER BN HER
BRZBESPRERARAFEEERZHE
ZER -

LTSEESMNIRZEIREDERR
EHRNTSEERRET - WHHEEE
FFHs5% BlBEE-_ZT—-NAE+= A
=+ —BLEFEZEERRIL 2,834,000
BT (= Z— V£ : 2,880,000 7T ) © fif
EBATISEETYS%  BHEEEEeS
BHERBRTE -
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31 December 2019 —ZE—AF+=-A=+—H

18. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 18. IERFEEEE

Cost
At 1 January
Additions
Transferred to property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)
Written off
Exchange differences

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment
At 1 January
Transferred to property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)
Written off
Impairment loss
Exchange differences

At 31 December

Carrying amount
At 31 December

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
5%
®n—A—H 817,378 689,832
RNE 19,282 162,326
EREYE - WE R
(Hfat15) (728,144) =
i gH (64,933) -
&5 =% (20,885) (34,780)
Rt+=—A=+—H 22,698 817,378
ZiHRE
n—HA—AH 343,154 320,745
EREYE - HE RS
(Kt 15) (305,692) =
58 (27,260) =
RIEEE 1,000 36,000
e H Z5E (8.624) (13,591)
wn+=-—A=+—8” 2,578 343,154
BREE
w+=-—A=+—8 20,120 474,224
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18. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 18. MIEKRFLEE @)

(Continued)

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

As the development stage was commenced from 9 July 2019
as stated in Note 19, the Directors considered that the
exploration and evaluation assets capitalised in the previous
years and utilitised for generating revenue in the development
stage should be reclassified as oil properties under Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 15).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for
impairment loss of HK$ 1,000,000 (2018: HK$36,000,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as the carrying amount of the
related cash-generating unit (“CGU") exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) in 2019
as a result of the change in production volume forecast to
reflect the current market situation. These assets are used in
the Group’s Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas segment. The reviews led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of HK$1,000,000 (2018: HK$36,000,000),
that has been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets of HK$20,120,000 (2018:
HK$474,224,000) has been determined on the basis of their
value in use using discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax
discount rate used was 15.8%.

R EFIHEERMRA C BEEEBK
RBERKARREM) - HA&ERE - e
?IH?EZ EREBRREAHENAEEEL
B B RN R

HRERBEEE S —NLFLtANA
RHEE (M I19/M) EERAER
BEFEERMLIYNERBERARESE
W R T EEERETHDEAY
¥ WEREZBET A HYEKE
15) °

2T NF+_A=1+—HIEFE -
AR AEEREEASM([IREEEER])
ZHEAEBBETKESE  BEFBIE
# 151,000,000 ( = & — N\ F:
36,000,000 70) E R ER ©

HREEENEMNE  R_T—LF -
AEEDHKRTIEE (m%&ﬁ’\%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
19) Z AJ Uk Bl & 58 1TH8 5T - DARR B Al
TGN - ZEEERARAEERATH
REERDEDE - BRI EHER
R (B E5 181,000,000 T ( —ZF — )\ &F -
36,000,000/ 7T) * WEREmF ER °
W& E 276 £ %820,120,000/8 7T
— T — )\ : 474,224,000 1) JH1{E
Hﬁfﬁfﬁiumg/f*E?ﬁﬁf%ﬁﬁf ﬁj_{’lf/\f?gé
TE o FTAZBRTBIRNR & A 15.8% °
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19.

124

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost A

At 1 January R—H—H
Exchange differences MEH ZRE

At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H

Accumulated amortisation and Rt RAE
impairment

At 1 January R—H—AR
Amortisation B
Impairment loss (hote) BAEEE (K77F)
Exchange differences ME =5

At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H

Carrying amount fREE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of
HK$16,548,000 (2018: HK$117,727,000) was provided. Details
of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC. CNPC is a stated-owned
company established in the PRC (the “Kashi Project”).

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7

9. EMILEE

2019 2018
—g-hE -T2 N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
2,729,031 2,849,785
(72,452) (120,754)
2,656,579 2,729,031
1,478,777 1,326,273
16,458 117,727
60,000 95,000
(39,554) (60,223)
1,515,681 1,478,777
1,140,898 1,250,254

ERAEROBEOER  HIREESN
FEE HE_T-NF+_A=+—H
IEFE - BT IR 8 855 516,548,000 7
T(ZZT—)\FE : 117,727,000/ 7T) < &
Wz FBHMmT

R-ZFZNFET-_A=-+=-8B FEEK
BB A MEER T AHAH - LARH
B B ARMERAICRIBER - B - 59
BREERRRRRAR - PEAHE
BRRTBERINEACE(RTIEA
B

RER-_ZFZENFT_ARITZAHEE
# o hEFERARRIESRERELE
Mk ERELREPEOHMEREIE - A
P PR B 58 58 4 BB K 2 3 IR 1 A [ R A 3%
REERBR,FRAR - AMER &
EFHRE-_TTNF/NA— B30
FoHRAITER -
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. B EE &

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC’s portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil and/or natural gas.

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil/gas
and investment recovery oil/gas. Remaining oil/gas, after cost
recovery, all applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the
PRC, is share oil/gas, which is apportioned between 51% by
CNPC and 49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of the Kashi Project beyond the original deadline of 31
May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site has
not been completed. On 6 December 2017, the Group and
CNPC entered into a supplement agreement to extend the
exploration period.

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties to
prepare data and information that are required for the ODP for
government approval before full production could be started.
Pursuant to the circular published by the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China on 27 February 2019, the ODP is no
longer required to be approved by the National Development
and Reform Commission but is only subject to new filing
requirements. Per the agreement with CNPC, the commercial
stage would be commenced when (i) the construction
infrastructure for gas production stated in the Kashi project at
Akemomu, North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, China (the
“Akemomu Gas Field”) is completed and being commenced
for production for 90 days; or (ii) when the total gas production
volume in the Akemomu Gas Field reached 300,000,000 cubic
meters of gas. The commencement date of commercial stage
would be confirmed and announced by joint committee
meeting afterwards. On 25 July 2019, the Group received a
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Cooperation Project that the filing of the ODP of the
Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and the
development stage commenced from 9 July 2019.

BIERBEL - PERIFRERETGER
Fr A A AN B A AN 7B A B A
SEEFRAFERDRNIES1% K49% 2t
BIAEHE o pEoN - PR ER B TR AR & K
AHHERTPEFREN  WEREER
M BARARIRE -

REBBMA KK - FHERA - FEK
AR AR ARRIBR AR B Yo, R R &
B EUYOH, SRS E o gt EARAS - 8
APBEERANABEERARERENRE
Regpzm/ RiE  RABH/R - BF
BamEEEPBEFRDHD1651% K
49% o

R-ZF—RE=A AEERTELHE
BIEARHIA T B « BN A FRIBAN
HREBLE 2K - BB EEZ
HHRPRRITR_F—AFAA=1T—
BEEmME AREE - BERTDEABRE
EERFERSHRARERMF - R _T—+
F+-ARA  AEEETELHEED
RIM T - AERENREIR -

AEE BB RESE IS -
HEEFEALTA N TRERBEFR
FrEz 8B R ER - MEBUFSEL - £
FeeABREEAE - BRIEPEARKLINE
BN —_E—NFE-_A -+t HZEM
B - BEARARETELERER
M EZESHE  EETEBENIH
T o AREEF B AREERT AR - B
BB BR GNP EEERBH IR
lERNEEAR(MEERTH] &
W+ IH B A OAT A R A R A EE R AR B
TR IIHAE B & (i) fil 52 B AR,
FH #9 2K S8 fR0 48 7 2 3£ 300,000,000 37 77 K
R - BECRENRARBHBEZBER
GEEEEERLIBEREM KT
—NFLtAZ+EHB  AEBWRBEML
ERAEEEBAEEZERGE MK
ERRHBEBRESIRN_Z—NLFt
ANAZRBEFE TN =_F—hFt
AL BB AFRERE -
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19.

126

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

note: Impairment loss of intangible assets in the amounts of HK$60,000,000

(2018: HK$95,000,000) was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 as the carrying amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU for
the Kashi Project was HK$1,777,622,000 (2018: HK$1,726,000,000)
based on value in use calculation using discounted cash flow method
(level 3 fair value measurement) and by reference to the valuation report
produced by APAC. The pre-tax discount rate used for value in use
calculations is 15.8% (2018: 19.5%) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The reduction in the recoverable amount of the CGU related to
the exploration and production segment was due to change in
production volume forecast to reflect the current market
situation.

(a) Result for the year

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
has recognised revenue approximately of
HK$148,452,000 (2018: HK$466,880,000) from the
sales of natural gas arising from its interests in a
Petroleum Contract during the exploration and evaluation
period from January 2019 to June 2019 and the
development period from July 2019 to December 2019
and the loss before income tax for the year for the sales
of natural gas was approximately HK$135,548,000
(2018: profit before income tax HK$165,034,000).

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7

9. BEEE(#)

Wit :

RBE-_ZT-NE+-_A=t+—HIFE "
AR EE v REEAEM 2 REELRRE
AEcEMERZEFLEERERRE
/60,000,000 7T (= Z — J\ 4 : 95,000,000
BIT) o BiTEE Zﬁ%@éiﬁﬁZﬂ&@
$ % 51,777,622,0008 T( —Z T — )\ & ¢

1,726,000,000 7T) &ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ@
REE(BE=RRAFEESR)BREERAER
AHERSEDARENGEERSEE - 82
—E—NF+-A=+—HLFE FEE
AEEMRANBAEREA158% (=2
— )\ : 19.5%) °

BRAURREESMNRSELE LA
Yo [B] & BB A TS B R EE B TRURI R P B
AR BR B AT ISZ AR FTER ©

(a)

REERE

REE=_ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
HFE AEEERRZR-_ZT— A
F—R= ?—ni/\ﬁl Eﬂéﬁ&ﬁ
HHAERRZ-_ZE—NLFLAZE
—NhF+=A %ﬁéﬂ;ﬁméﬁéaﬂaé\
HzEREEZ RARBEERELD
148,452,000/ ;L( = & — J\ F :
466,880,000/ 70) * ME R Z KA
RIEERMBHAEIR 2’77%
135,548,000/ L (= F — )\ 4F ¢
Fr{S mwmﬂm5%4mmﬁn)
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

() Commitments

Capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment
and exploration and evaluation
expenditures

9. EFVEE®)

(b) EERAE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$"000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
VI~ BB KRS 617,343 1,254
MR L EEE 20,120 474,224
mILEE 1,140,898 1,250,254
FEERIRE = 100,026 =
REFIEEE = (11,649)
mENEE 358,271 446,695
mENEE (712,269) (496,501)
IERBEE (64,975) (143,736)
BEFE 1,459,414 1,520,541
() Zi¥E
2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
BRI
BRIAERFE 5 BIEEME
— ME  BEREERE
EERE

522,640 104,834
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

128

20.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 are as follows:

Name

NAEW

China Energy Resources Holdings Ltd

PRERERERAR

Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong
Kong) Limited
HERERE (BE)ARAA

China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited
PEERERIRE (BB BRAR

Zhong Neng Finance Limited

R BEERAR
Di Maria Limited
EENEERAR

Team Lucky Development Limited

AERRERAT

Fortune Great Limited
EEBRATA

RUBKEEARIEIERAR
(Karamay Fuhai Petroleum
Chemical Engineering Co., Limited)*

RUBEKEEAMEIERAR

RUBKEERRERAR
(Karamay Weirun Gas Co., Limited)*

RAUBKEERRERAR

Form of business
structure

ERERYA

Limited liability company

BRAH

Limited liability company

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company
ARAA

Limited liability company
BRAT

Limited liability company

ARAA

Limited liability company

BRAH

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
HERAL/
RIER/ %

Hong Kong

&R

British Virgin Islands
RBRAES
Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
EE

PRC

HE

PRC

il

Country/place of
operation

BEER/WH

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

v

R
PRC
HE

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&R

PRC

e

PRC

il

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

* The English names are for identification only

China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EI&E R ZR AR A T

R 2 Bz

ARARR=_E—NF+_A=+—H2Z
FEMBARZFFBUT ¢

Principal activities

IREH

Sales of food and
beverages and
investment holding

EERRRAHER
REERR

Investment holding

RERR

Oiland gas
exploration

HRER

Money lending
HiE

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
RERR

Distribution of natural
gas
DEAAR

Issued and fully paid

share capital

ERTRARRA

Ordinary share HK$1

EER1EL

Ordinary share US$1
TER1ET
Ordinary share HK$1
LRk BT

Ordinary share HK$1
Lak 1T

Ordinary share
HK$10,000
LBk 10,0007

Ordinary share HK$2
LER2ET

Ordinary share HK$1
TERIET

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000

AMEAARS
5,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB130,000,000

AMERARE
130,000,0007T

Percentage of
interests held
BERERAL
Directly Indirectly
EE BB
100% =
100% =
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
= 51%
- 2601%

ZEHBARRFERRERTERNBES

s
g °

* BEXEBEHZS
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION

(a)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from:

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF—H—H
Credited/(charged) to profitor 5t A /(1B B)ER
loss during the year (note 10) Bz (et 10)

Exchange differences ME 5 =R
At 31 December 2018 and R-_ZE—N\FE+=-H
1 January 2019 =t+—HERZZE—NF
—HA—H

Credited/(charged) to profitor 5T A/ (3AkRH) FA
loss during the year (note 10) 8z (ff:% 10)

Exchange differences MEH ZEHE
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z—-h&+=A
=+—H

note: Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represented deductible/taxable
temporary difference in relation to exploration and evaluation
activities in the PRC and the recoverability depends on the future
profitability of the Kashi Project.

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

21. ELEBIIR

(@) FARZEEMBMNKFHERZE
EHBEEE/(AfE) AR k&
BT

EREBEAE(BBE)ELR :

Exploration
costs Tax losses Total
BER A BRI 4
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHEIT FHEIT FET
(Note)
(Kr7t)
99,673 - 99,673
(180,902) 70,013 (110,889)
1,961 (2,394) (433)
(79,268) 67,619 (11,649)
91,926 19,751 111,677
2,146 (2,148) (2)
14,804 85,222 100,026

M - BEHBREE/(BE) RRENED
B 2 B ER AT 1k B 2 BB FT IR R
ARBER - 1 ATURE M BUR R B IR
BZARRERIEES °
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

130

(a)

(b)

(Continued) (a)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BERIBEE,(AE)

Deferred tax assets not recognised (b)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative Hong Kong and the PRC tax losses
of approximate HK$18,182,000 and HK$Nil as at 31
December 2019 respectively (2018: HK$18,166,300 and
HK$892,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entity. The
Hong Kong tax losses will not expire under the current
relevant tax legislation while the PRC tax losses will expire
in five years.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2019, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised as
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no undistributed
profits (2018: Nil).

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7

21. ELERIR (#)

(%)

SRR B 0 EERIBE R D
T

2019 2018

—®-nE B )\F

HK$'000 HK3$'000

FET FHET

100,026 (11,649)
REDELEHREE

NEFBVEFR-_Z—NLFE+-A
=+ —HRFAHEBRPABEEIE
D RI#718,182,000/8 T R EHET(—
=T — )\ £ :18,166,300/8 7T &
892,000 ) MERIELERRIAE = -
FRRABRERZ ABEHIE R LR
AARAEEABRAZEBEZ AKX
FERBUEA - RIBRITAEBE L
ERMBEEBESETSEE  mPR
RIEEIEER AT RN -

AR BB 10% 55 TRAH EAK L
2 WA ) 2 R 9 R R o
BEEMB - R=B—NF+=A
=t+—8 - ERREEZTHNB
AR MRS IREF (ZF— N\
£ ) BERREMECHES

& e
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B E SRR EE

n‘l-ﬁ
31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H
22. ACCOUNT AND NOTE RECEIVABLES 22. BEWERRERE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NE
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FAEIT
Account receivables (note (a)) FEURBR TR (BT 3E (a))

— Sales of natural gas — HERAR 48,820 439,739

Loan and interest receivables (note (b)) W ER KA E (K7 b))
— Others — HAfty 37,100 37,100
85,920 476,839
Less: Expected credit losses B TEEEEEE (37.104) (37.243)
48,816 439,596
Note receivables (note (a)) W EE (M7t @) 99,528 =
148,344 439,596

note (a):

note (b):

Sales of natural gas represent the receivables recognised under the
production sharing contract with CNPC for the Group's operation in
Kashi, the PRC. The Group recognises the revenue in relation to this
operation during the current year. Sales to customer is normally made
with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The entire balance of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, based on the invoice
dates, are not yet past due. The Group did not hold any collateral over
the balance.

Note receivables represent the repayments from CNPC through the
issue of bank’s acceptance bill with six months maturity period.

The balance of sales of natural gas are non-interest bearing. None of
the account receivables and note receivables are pledged to secure the
Group's banking facility as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Account
receivables of HK$439,596,000 were pledged as security for bank
borrowings).

Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-bearing
at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan receivable from
Sing Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on the SEHK but was delisted on 18
August 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-up
order was made against Sing Pao and the Group has already submitted
proof of debt form to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January 2016. On 2
November 2017, the Group’s legal advisor was informed by the
liquidator that the process of realisation of assets of Sing Pao was
completed and there was unlikely to be any surplus assets for
distribution to creditors (including the Company) after payment of the
costs of the liquidation.

Kret () -

iz b) -

RARHEERERPE T MEER 2 E
BORAKNRAEB NG BB 2 EEHER
Z FEWCHRIR o AL BN ARNFE 5% TS HER
Wis o MEPEHRIEE —&RIZ30E60H
EEHETT - ERNEREAHNE H UK
RZBEBR T NEFR-_T-N\F+=
A=t—HYEaH - AREWEZER
B R o

R EEIET B AR EEEBEITRTARL
ER(HRANER) EHZER -

FARHEZ R BT E - —h&E
+=-—A=+—A8" ﬁ%ﬂﬁ’éuﬁzﬁé &F’éuﬁzm%ﬁ
EERAREERITHEZER(ZT—
£F 439,596,000 7T 2 JE W B 7 E}Jﬂﬁﬁf—z
IRITERZIER) ©

BR—E2BIE=TRBREREEERD

(HEJZ%EJ)E\ B }Eiﬂﬁlﬂ%ﬁ
WAR—FAEE  ZFRHECRBE=
%**¢+:H =+ —RALEFERERE -
R RE KRR —RE =T EAEREER

Enn

Al

E:

BRI 17 2 BTN B BB R AT BT BN =
Z-RFNATN\AKRE -BE_T—1F
ToA=+t—BLLFE KBRBETER
2 MAKETER=_Z—~"E—AtERA
REREER AR ERERR - N T —+
F+—AZH  AEBEREEERETEA
S/ KROEERERBE TR - ERK
ARFERBEEANHIRTERA(BR
RRAE]) A BRI o
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22,

23.

132

ACCOUNT AND NOTE RECEIVABLES 22. BWERRKRE @)

(Continued)

The aging analysis of account receivables at the end of the FEWBR R B R E R s 738 B A7
reporting period, presented based on the revenue recognition S7RRE DT (FIREE) T :

dates, and net of allowance, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 3 months =EAA 48,820 439,596
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RAFEEFABRZEZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2019 2018
—E-hF —=E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Equity securities, at fair value BRAFH (RAFEBE)
Listed in Hong Kong REE LT 31,064 61,476
Fair value of listed equity securities ERTISHME 2 ETRAFS
based on quoted market price NEEE(B-—RAFEE
(level 1 fair value measurement) =) 31,064 61,476
Analysed as: DR
Current assets MENE B 31,064 61,476
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or BEAFBEAABRZEMNEEZAT
loss are based on their current bid price in an active market. BEDERENGRMS 2 ERKIZE -
China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7
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Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of other

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HibEWRTE - BERFANRK
PREPAYMENTS yi]
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Other receivables, deposits and HAb WA « 518 RIERKIE
prepayments (note (a)) (K17 (a) 48,867 19,466
Refundable deposits mREE]®
Mr. Wang lJian Guo (note (b)) TEB &L (A% D)) 20,725 20,725
Refundable deposits (note (@) AR EIET € (AYat @) = 29,000
69,592 69,191
Less: Expected credit losses B TEEEEEE
Refundable deposit (note (b)) AREIET @ (Mfat (b)) (20,725) (20,725)
Other receivables and deposits Hib B F AR IRS (5.476) (14,730)
(26,201) (35,455)
43,391 33,736

EREMEEFBERREZRBEERS

receivables and deposits is as follows: SEET -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at 1 January R—RA—Rz#&&#% 35,455 53,975

Reversal of expected credit losses FRECTBEREERE

during the year (193) (6,411)
Disposal of subsidiary HEHE AT = (12,109)
Amount written off MiEeRE (9,061) =
Balance at 31 December R+-_A=+—HBz&% 26,201 35,455
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n'F

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

134

note (a):

note (b):

China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EI&E R ZR AR A T

For the refundable deposits of HK$29,000,000, the Group agreed to
split it into two note receivables of HK$17,800,000 and HK$11,200,000
respectively with the maturity date on 31 August 2019. 8% per annum
of interest rate is charged for the note receivables and repayable on
maturity date. HK$11,200,000 of bill receivables was then assigned to
settle the shareholder loan during the year. As at 31 December 2019,
the outstanding balance of note receivable included in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments is HK$17,975,000 and extended to 29
February 2020 and 31 August 2020 respectively.

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third
party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the proposed
acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the target companies,
Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (¥ #88 1.
M & = A PR & £ 2 &) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining Limited
Liability Company (& 32 % & ©#& % 5 R & £ 2 7)) of an aggregate
consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516 million)  (the
“Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The principal activities of both companies are in
the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit of
HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang
Jian Guo upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
Company executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed
acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit,
both parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued a
Writ of Summons against Mr. Wang Jian Guo claiming the principal and
interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court of First
Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy Even the
sum of RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. The Group is
now considering actions to recover the said amount from Mr. Wang
Jian Guo. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the refundable
deposits were impaired and there is no provision for impairment (2018:
Nil) charged to profit or loss for the year.

IE

=

iz () -

&z (b)

H b B W =R

: SLAR 2 $ 29,000,000 BT &

- BERAMNRK

~ZK;EKI
RAESEDIFAMBEKEE  ¢EHRA
n@mpm%m&ngmpm%mv%_;
—NENA=+—RHFH - BREEZFF
KE8%  WAREHAMEE - RFRN - &
%44 11,200,000 78 7T 2 FE W Z= R A E & 4]
AENEMBRRER - RZE—NE+=A
== - %H\EWEH&Z%WE R e RIBA
FIBZ BRI 2 RERE#417,975,000
BT RS E\Jkﬁﬁzzfzifﬂ
—t+thBR=Z=ZFNA=+—8-

MIEELFAA-STHEA EREEE

(B E=7) 2% IBEREAR AR ([1HRIE])
(AEBEZHBAR) T ([l
ANABBREZKE B EARMEZETMNEE
BRECARKEEGFELEEAREMTD
AIEBZ5I%RE BREAARE
498,000,000 7T (#8552 516,000,000/ 7T) ©
MEARIEARTREKZZERAR - £2
¥BHAENPEMEES - ASEENFRT
HEERTEREAESINTRETS
20,725,000 7% 7t (855 7 A K # 20,000,000
L) c RZZFZENFELA=+—H ' ARQR
FUBRERWETEZRIEZE - Bt -
BIROIAREF] & - EHEBRE BN &G
Z2EE -RZZ—F=A+A " fHIEAE
BESEABHERSK - BHNRERSZ
ASEFNE - RZT—=FXATN\H R
INEREHATEEAEAARIELFEEA
E%ﬂ]BJWKﬁ#E%E REBEBRIE
ZERREMITE  MERBELERED Like
B - RZZ—NEFEER=ZFT—-N\F+=A
E+—Ev%%7ﬂ@§$ﬂaﬁﬁvﬂi
ERAFEZBENRBERE(Z
Fom)o
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HAbPEANRIER BT RIR
2019 2018
—g-nE  —F)\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TH#ET
Non-current: FEMED
Property, plant and equipment/exploration 1% - BB K &%, B)iF K aFE
and evaluation cost payables (note (a)) FER A (K77t (a) 61,692 143,736
Current: e
Property, plant and equipment/exploration 1% - BB K&, BiiF K aF &
and evaluation cost payables (note (a)) FERHAX A (17T (a)) 499,968 353,956
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) H A FE AR IE K FE ST RRIE (MY aE (b)) 212,399 90,812
712,367 444,768
774,059 588,504
note (a): Property, plant and equipment/exploration and evaluation cost payables Fffst(a) NG A B EMEAMT18AIIRE - ¥ K
represents balances payable in 2021 to sub-contractors engaged by the ERSE/HERTIGHEMKAER=-S
Group to perform exploration, evaluation and development works on - EENTFAEERER  IRAMAYETE
the area designated in the Petroleum Contract as disclosed in Note 18 TEEETHE  HERERTEZSEHE
to the consolidated financial statements. The effective interest rate of WiERS - SERBWE MERSRESHER
non-current property, plant and equipment/exploration and evaluation S RE AR AN BRI 56.98% o
cost payables was 6.98%.
note (b): Included above are other payables bearing fixed interest rates ranging HisEp) : LB R B EIRETEFEFEN T4% E6%
from 4% to 6% (2018: ranging from 4% to 6%) per annum amounted (CE—NE:NFa%Z6%)Fa8 7 HEl
to HK$Nil (2018: HK$11,580,000) and the receipt in advance from ENZE 2EAEET(—F— )\ 4F:
CNPC amounted to HK$160,366,000 (2018: Nil). 11,580,000 70) + MR E B AMER Y
TEUTFKIE A 160,366,000 7T (ZF— \F ¢
) e
BALANCE WITH RELATED PARTY 26. BRAEE A L 2R
Amount due to a shareholder EA—EREZE
The amount due a shareholder is unsecured, at fixed interest et — PR ERIB AMEE « R E T F =
rate of 5% and repayable on demand. 5%t BN ERESKERE -
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n'F
31 December 2019 — & —

28.

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HERE
Present value
Lease of lease
payments payments
HENR HESHRZBE
2019 2019
—E-hE —E-hF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Within one year R—FA 11,261 10,604
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(BEEEMSE) 3,325 3,283
14,586 13,887
Less: Future finance charges o RREE A (699)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEZRE 13,887
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : W 12{@ A RE|ESEZ
months (shown under current liabilities) 2B (RNREBEEFEIEIIR) (10,604)
Amount due for settlement after R1I2EABEIHEEZERE
12 months 3,283
At 31 December 2019, the average effective borrowing rate R-F-NF+-_A=1+—08 FHER
was 6.98%. Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and B E 56.98% © KT IAAL B
thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. o YEmMSAEEREATFEENER
|3/‘/\
BANK BORROWINGS 28. RITEE
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAEIT
Secured bank borrowings — current BEMRITEE — R = 65,931
Repayable: EER
Within one year or on demand B— iﬁﬂi?ﬁzgji = 65,931

136
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. SRITEE (#)

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB, charged at
an interest rate equivalent to 1.47 times the three-year
benchmark lending interest rate of the People’s Bank of China
and pledged by the account receivables of the Group (Note 22)
under the Petroleum Contract dated 22 December 2008 and
the supplemental contract dated 6 December 2017.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s financial
position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Company was to
breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. In addition, certain of the Company’s
term loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender
the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the Company has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Company regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the
Company continues to meet these requirements. Further details
of the Company’'s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 41(d). As at 31 December 2019, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings are fully repaid.

fiﬁfﬁﬁu/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ CERBEARRTT
SEHEREERNEN1.47FHF KR IK
BHS - YREAHS-ZETNF+ A
—TBZAMAHRBEHMA =T+
FT_ARNBZERABHALEERY
RR SRR (B RE22) ©

FARITREYAETRARNRETHY
BRI RARR 2 24 - RO ERER
BB SR 2 (B LD » WMARFIER
Y CIRIBE A WERZENEE - it
S ARBzETERER BB S T
Wﬁki%%l 22 SR A ) B e B B 22
RZREN (T RARRREEE TR R
Eﬂ%mﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂmﬂ°

AARIEHERREBETRZERNZIE
u&%%ﬁéi%%ﬁﬁtfﬁ% IR
REARRNRBEFEZERTE  BITT
RATREATEEBBRESER - BEAR
AIEERBE SRR ZE—FFBHN
fsEd1d)ye R—E—NE+-_A=+—
B BEEkeECRNEE 2RY -

R-ZBE-AE+-A=+—0H  H17EE
EREEE -
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29.

138

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the Vendor,
entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments held the entire issued
share capital of China Era which had entered into the
Petroleum Contract with CNPC as disclose in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the "First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
" Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries (the
“Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall
amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan
consideration payable by the Company in the sum of
HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the
sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of
HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”) should
only be released to the Vendor upon the Company having
received a written certificate issued by the competent evaluator
confirming that the First Designated Area be evaluated on the
basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or before 31 May
2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written certificate was
received by the Company on or before 31 May 2015. Under
the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes have been
returned to the Company for cancellation. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000 was
recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation
of convertible notes.
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29. ATEAREE

R-ZBZAE—HA=-+=-H & 7 - #
Al EERAERAR(EA D RIRE
EEWEBEAZERAREHZHE
TRAZEZHEEAN)  PRFR(EA
EAZERN REZRBELAREEE
(BB)BRAR([HEHIRE ) 2 100% %
RNiEmima] ik ([ ZmaEl) - EalK
EERFETPRFREBEETIRA - M
PEFREFBRAHREECRI Y T AM
B (R E M IEREM T 19FTHEE) o

RZT——F—A=H KERMRER
REAzEF—HEEHR(E—BEHE]
AR EREMBAR(HAKES
B z22MERTRATKRESTED 2
BRI BZRK -

AREREEEERE —EEE - A
NRIEHRFRERE0.168 TR E /7 %
178 —#£2,558,000,00078 7T 2 Al IR =
& A8 —#E1X {8 2,558,000,000 7
T (BEERERETHNTERENZ
%1,279,000,000/87T) ° AR RIER 2 85
& BB 906,299,000 78 7T 235 @A
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102,299,000 Jt BIILATR & sk 17 7 2 E fth
ARER -

RIEZ W% £%81,279,000,000/8 7T 2
TR ER(EZEEEDETREAF
BWREFNEEMEHEMEERRE
—EEHEER T —RAFREA=1+—
Bekz A ([ B R ] BIKERREE
L EET L% - HAERE - AQERZ
E-RERA=+—BH AW EEE
EHEMESE - REZBHR IR =58
ZREREARERE BEZT—1F
+ZA=+—RHLEFE  KARAZHEA
A% 1% i 7 18 A T 3R Uk 2% 92,459,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where
the convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group
(other than the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall
comply with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or
requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of
the convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right
attached to the convertible notes held by such holders if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the
shares fall below the minimum public float requirement
stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as required by
the SEHK. The conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is
subject to adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or
reclassification of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and
other events which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.
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29. TR ERE &

UEoN - BB Z I - AEEI EER T
EARTAE I FEHE 2 MENERS o R
M ENZ B RIEH 2B TIEGE
1T T8 3@ 7,442,000,000 7 7T 2 BB YN AT
BB KBS — e HE - BREE
B ARERALER - FRIER o

E—MWTEBARREBELASEA
2,558,000,000 %8 7T ° AR =ik 2 B HA
BAEITAH-_Z——F— A= HEs
=+FfEm o AT ZEET SRR EH
EE N RRERREETERER
ABEALTUIINZ AEBBEALT(EE
R EMMRA) - B EMEEAFES LETHE
Bl 2 E KSR T E 2 E (1R
B)e

REFEAITRETEHEF =TFR
BE B IR R AR (B A% 0.168 78 TT i 2 BB 3k &P
DHBBEEBEASERBBARFHE
R - M) A RATT AR - AIHRREER
BARBE-HITHALHAELERS
R ER30% KA ERRA 2
ERTROER (ABFBRRAEERAEH
STRIFTRE NIRRT & ol EHor diE 2 m ik
BEBZARFCHITRAZAEDL) -
AINSTTHE AR A RIR AT BT L k8 ¢ K (i)
MR LR - BRI Z ARFEREREE
7 T R Bl 55 8.08 {5 AT 7T FR B A P AR JE
ZEERRFRERTE « A AHRREES
BARNBITEZSHE ARG BRERE
TRPTH S k- MAREEA0.168 B TTH]
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29.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.

The movement of the principal amount, liability component
and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows:

As at 1 January 2018
Interest expenses (Note 8) MEFZ (K:E8)
As at 31 December 2018 and n=
at 1 January 2019
Interest expenses (Note 8)

MEFRX (HiZ8)

As at 31 December 2019
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29. TR EE &)

BESD REDRBY A FEERET
ARERERETE - BEMIZAFEE
(BRRIFRBEE)ERRFIEAIERK
ZRZMHENEAE - AEED 2 BB
ER1M% MASRAIERERARNE
Baiks - IRRERZ RS (KK
ABRREBEAFEEREERO A TE
B2 ZRB)FFABBEAZREARKRTR
AR RIS

—N\F+ZA=+—H
rE=—ZF—N&—A—H

RBREEASE - AEDD REEDD

2BBIT :
Carrying amount
IREE

Liability Equity

component component

BERD ERED

HK$'000 HK$°000

TET TH#ET

64,489 695,828

6,978 -

71,467 695,828

7,732 -

79,199 695,828




29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

Up to 31 December 2019, convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary
shares of the Company. No convertible notes have been
converted during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3

January 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
At 1 January and 31 December

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
At 1 January and 31 December

A IS SRR BE
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29. AR EE (@)

BEE-ZT-NF+ZA=1+—H £&%
7,%599,3300002&57327#%me%)‘éemﬁﬁ
ABARREBRR BEZT-—NER=-ZF
—)\¢+_ﬂ_+ HIEFE - WE/A ik
IREIRE R -

RZE-—NFR_ZT—N\F+ZA=1+—
B - T@HX%T@Z*1§E$$§EE
679,670,000/ T + ME/HAR AT (A
—E——F—A=ZH)EHHR=T1TF-

30. IR
2019 2018
“E-1F “E-N\F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROEE kit RinEIE ik
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
EE
SRAEE0.S BT LBk
B—A—RARk
+-A=+—-H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
BRTRME:
SRMEE0.05 8L LBk
R—A—Bk
+-A=+—-H 9,505,344,000 475,267  9,505,344,000 475,267
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31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

142

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Mt FET FEr
FRBEE
M B AR Z iR 1,546,233 1,590,593
1,546,233 1,590,593
RBEE ‘
BAFEERTAEBR
L EREE 31,064 61,476
Hip eI FRIE « & KA
FRIA 18,299 28,764
RE RRITHER 34,866 48,694
84,229 138,934
REBEE
H b S FE R BT FUR 1,204 3,331
e —RREFIR 29,551 40,402
30,755 43,733
RBEETFE 53,474 95,201
EEHERADER 1,599,707 1,685,794
FREBEE
AR EE 79,199 71,467
79,199 71,467
EEFE 1,520,508 1,614,327
R
fig A 30 475,267 475,267
& 32 1,045,241 1,139,060
MR 1,520,508 1,614,327

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 8 May 2020.

Zhao Guogiang

itk
Director

EF

31. R QAT BRI R

EFegnX _T_TFAANNBHERK

RTIEZMBEHE -

Gu Quan Rong
B

Director

EE
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32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

A IS SRR BE
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32. {#1&

() F&£H

AEEZFRESBREEINGS
BaEkHEMEHAKRERARGERE

profit or loss and other comprehensive income and HEERANZY o
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Company (b) EAF
Contributed Share  Convertible  Accumulated
surplus premium  notes reserve losses Total
BARAES RIOEE TRREERE iR faE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
&L FET FET TEL TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§—HA—-H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,244,068) 1,222,296
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEREZABEESR = = = (83,236) (83,236)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$TZA
=1+-H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828  (1,327,304) 1,139,060
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE2AERER - - - (93,819) (93,819)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hE+=A
=1+-AH 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,421,123 1,045,241
Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group AEFE G MER B
Contributed surplus BN B

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17
January 2002.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company under certain circumstances. It represents
the excess of the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company.

BERBABRDIRE_FTT _F—
A+TtBEAKBEEAR  BARK
B AR Z EBITRAMETZA
DA A 2z E{E K B A B 2 48R
BEEMEZER

B wE

BIEFASBHSATNEZHTE - ’KH
HEREET ’|$5R—|——J’\77E7‘7$’\
AIARER - W RERBEAAD
BITROEEZEE -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(Continued)

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to
convert the note into share capital).

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:
— property, plant and equipment and

exploration and evaluation BhER R AT
expenditures
— capital contribution in a subsidiary — HWEAREE

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$522,640,000 (of which approximately HK$199,564,000
would be borne by CNPC) and HK$121,000,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$104,834,000 and HK$118,650,000)
in respect of capital expenditure of exploration, production and
distribution of nature gas segment and capital contributions in a
subsidiary respectively.

144

32. fiife (&)
(b) AT #)

AEEFEZMEER BB ()

A 12 R Z 15 o 1
AR R IR REE R D BT R R
BZERBL (AN BEREZR
RZIBIZRE) o

33. EAEIE

REBRFERRZEARAEMT

EHESEES AR -t 5

—WE - BERERER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr
522,640 104,834
121,000 118,650

RZZB—-hE+ZA=1+—0  ~&EEz
AARD IR - EEMD HHE R
TURE—MNBRARZ EEDREE
N A HE #9522,640,0005 T E 4
199,564,000 7% 7T A 1 B /4 i £ [ A4 )
}%121,000,000% t( = & — N\ F:
104,834,000 7T & 118,650,000 7T ) °

IIE
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with related
and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements (a) dated
16 September 2013 in relation to media reports about Mr.
Wang Guoju; (b) dated 7 June 2015 in relation to charges
against Mr. Wang Guoju for illegal operation crime involving
allegations about improper conduct during the obtaining of the
Petroleum Contract (the “lllegal Operation Charge”); (c) dated
17 June 2015 in relation to the commencement of the
Litigation in the Grand Court of the Cayman islands (the
“Cayman Court”) against (inter alia) the Defendants (including
Mr. Wang Guoju and UK Prolific) with the view to obtaining
Cayman Court’s order to have the Totalbuild Transaction
declared void or rescinded and have damages awarded to the
Company; (d) dated 25 June 2015 in relation to the obtaining
by the Company of the Injunction Order from the Cayman
Court restraining the Defendants from disposing of,
transferring, dealing in, diminishing the value of or exercising
voting rights in respect of 1.86 billion issued Shares (the
“Restrained Shares”), and restraining the Defendants from
converting convertible bonds representing 13,366,190,476
underlying Shares (the “Restrained CBs"); (e) dated 18 August
2015 in relation to the continuation of the Injunction Order
against the Company’s undertaking not to issue or deal with
additional Shares or securities without leave of the Cayman
Court until the conclusion of the trial relating to the Litigation
or further order by the Cayman Court (the “Company’s
Undertaking”); and (f) dated 6 December 2017 in relation to
the signing of the Supplemental Contract between the Group
and CNPC to extend the First Phase exploration period by way
of supplement and amendment to the original Petroleum
Contract. Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized
terms used in this section shall have the same meanings as
defined in the said announcements.
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34.

BEBALRS

RARIEREBRARRBIB@EA L KB
RAETZRHENGRERBRHE - I
ERAMERE o RSB BHRREAMED
DWRBEIN  AEBEEFAREEKE QT
ZEMEEEALTAUTEARRS

FTEEEAEME
RTASETIZEREABZHE (BER

ARAEERN 2 0 F) RERGA TS
CELIESER

35. F&

HiA

ZRAARR@BPAZZTE—=F 1A
+RBRAH RABBEIEELENE
HikE: b)BAE-_ZT—RAF~ALH
WA WEARBIRELEREFRIES
g HP S RERESARBEHNRE
NETANEIE(IEEEESRE] (O
HAEZTE—RAFNATLEHNAH R
@AY (AR s (BEIRELE
K UK Prolific) R E8 S X ER([FHE
HEXLR]) AEFRD  SKOEHSH
EFERMEH S FHRAIRHEERES
SRS M AR R R EBEE : (d) B
HA-TE—RENAZTHENAMHG - A
AEBARRRERAESHE AR
S NUEHELE BEE BB
1,860,000,000 fi% B 277 J& 17 ([ 52 BR Hl f%
B ) RIBE BRI EESRITERERE -
N ZS 1) 4 5 88 % 1 13,366,190,476 %
TR RR (5 M AT AR E 5 ([ PR #l AT 32 A%
E5D:@B8HAE-ZE—FHFNATN
HHAMH  RABBAZEHSESTE B
BARRREE EEHBFLANENTE
KHASHEERAE— TS ZA - AR
AT EEAMESHEHS AR MG
SR BEITREBRAIIMNED RES (AR
AmEE]D ROBBA-ZT—tF
+=ANEHBAM AR BREAEEEF
BEAnEERT ARG BREx RS
FIRFTARAEL BIHGRHE —RBEL
K -BRNESHE ANMAFRRENEL
MmAmATAREEABRREE -

145

Annual Report & 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n-.ﬁ

31 December 2019 — & —

35.

36.
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B IEERaR M EE
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LITIGATION (Continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2017, following the signing of the Supplemental
Contract with CNPC on 6 December 2017, the Company was
informed by Mr. Wang Guoju and his legal representative that
the lllegal Operation Charge against Mr. Wang Guoju was
acquitted. On that basis and after taking legal advice from the
Company’s legal advisers, the Company has on 27 December
2017 reached settlement with the Defendants pursuant to
which the Company will apply to the Cayman Court for
discontinuance of the Litigation, as a result of which the
Injunction Order and the Company’s Undertaking would be
discharged.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 May
2018, on 10 May 2018, a Consent Order was granted by the
Cayman Court regarding the discontinuation of the Litigation
and the discharge of the Injunction Order and the Company’s
Undertaking, such that the Defendants should no longer be
restrained in respect of the Restrained Shares and the
Restrained CBs and the Company should no longer be
restrained from issuing or dealing with additional Shares or
securities in the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought about
additional uncertainties to the global macroeconomy, which
may impact the Group's financial performance for the first half
of 2020. However, the degree of impact remains difficult to
gage at this early stage. The Group will remain vigilant over
COVID-19 and access its impact on the Group’s financial
position and operating results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

RAIBEKRE S A M THRRAG, an effective 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has non-controlling interests (NCI).
7 RIS KB M R A BR A B, an effective 26.01% owned
subsidiary of the Company, is a direct subsidiary of 52 A7 ¥k =
EBRMIECIARAT.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of 525z
Bk E 8 A ML THMRAF, before intra-group eliminations,
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37. FERER

RARREBRERS1% R B ARR
ISR E S A BE TER AR R IEE
PetEes - AARERESL26.01% EmZ
BRI KEERRBERRE R
RAUBERESAMECIERAB ZEE
ERIE=PNCI

BRARNBKESAMETBRAAFE
B AR E CREt REER

is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December
Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss for the year allocated to NCI

For the year ended 31 December
Net cash used in operating activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

HiHR0) 2500 -

2019 2018
—E-hF  —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
BEt+-A=1+—RHLEE
Was 9,608 10,905
FAEE (1,540) (483)
RSB (4,019) (4,664)
STEFFEREZZERNEE (1,139) (356)
BEt+t-A=1+—RHLEE
LB RE TR S F5 (787) (1,989)
ReRERREMDFE (787) (1,989)
R+=—A=+-—H
mBEE 2,127 3,496
IERENEE 20,394 23,791
mEEE (7,873) (10,685)
BEFE 14,648 16,602
ey 10,804 12,306
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38.

148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash available on demand BRERREH RS

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year:

GERTREBRME

(a) REREEAREBVE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E2-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
226,798 68,084

(b) EXEHBEEFHZEEED

TRERFALAKERERERD
ZEEES

Amount Amount due to  Total liabilities
Bank duetoa Lease non-controlling from financing
borrowings  shareholder liabilities interests activities
Eff—% EfEER REREED
RITEE BRRFE HESE ERNE ZBBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T FET FiET
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-F—H - 40,626 - 6,222 46,848
Changes in cash flows: BeREEE:
Repayment to a shareholder A—ZRRER = (1,263) = = (1,263)
Repayment to non-controlling interests [m3EfE Rk R E T = = = (6,222) (6,222)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEER %E‘TJA’ 69,903 - - - 69,903
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,638) - = - (1,638)
Interest paid ERFIE (919) = = = (919)
67,346 (1,263) - (6,222) 59,861
Non-cash changes FRLEH
— Interest charged —BHkzHa 919 - _ _ 919
— Exchange adjustments —ERAE (2,334) = = = (2,334)
(1,415) - - - (1,415)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\§+=A
1 January 2019 ol =
—NE-A-8 65,931 39,363 - - 105,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

Changes in cash flows:
Repayment to a shareholder
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Non-cash changes
— Recognition of lease liabilities
Initial recognition
Addition
— Interest charged
— Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

=
=a

Bt 35 SR R B R

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

38. MEBRERERMT &)

(b) EXEHBMEEHZEERE(E)

Amount Amount due to  Total liabilities
Bank duetoa Lease non-controlling from financing
borrowings  shareholder liabilities interests activities
-2 EAFER REMEED
BIEE RRFHE HEERE BEHE ZBEE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TAT T FEL TAT
REREZRE:
M—EREEHR - (11,531) - - (11,531)
RITEEMGIE 45,075 - - - 45,075
BERTEE (110,423) = = - (110,423)
ERHE (5,088) - - = (5,088)
BEAEMR - - (5,683) - (5.683)
(70,436) (11,531) (5,683) - (87,650)
HRe2Y
—EARERR
TRHER - - 6,624 - 6,624
NE - - 11,503 - 11,503
—BHRZHE 5,088 1,719 1,619 - 8,426
—EHAR (583) = (176) = (759)
4,505 1,719 19,570 - 25,794
R=Z-NE+=R
Er=f - 29,551 13,887 - 43,438
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39,

40.

150

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

To support the Group's stability and growth; and

To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company only, comprising share capital and
reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2018: HK$475,267,000) and
HK$1,034,437,000 (2018: HK$1,147,086,000) respectively as at
31 December 2019.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group has not adopted any
formal dividend policy. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. For details of cash flow forecast carried out by
the Directors, please refer to Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern
basis”.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7
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40.

HAREE

RZB-NF+_A=+—H8 £EEL
BEMBEAIARABE( T -N\F &) -

BARRAMERE
AEEEREAY BIEA

RERAEFREBERS  BERRK
REEMESFE ADBIEKEH
Kz

XFHAKEZREERER R

— REEARNUMNBAEE 2 EREE

4
BE ©

RZE-—NEF+-A=+—H ~EEE
AEBEBRREALBEE AL RS - &
B IER AR M FEE D B & 475,267,000 4
TT( ==& — )\ : 475,267,000/ 7T ) &
1,034,437,000% o = & — N\ F:
1,147,086,000 & 7T) ©

AEBBEGNERRS MEEREAR
B ARREBEARBRERLOR - &
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such
as trade receivables, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in
the normal course of the Group's business are foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price

risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Directors review and agree on policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank balances
and other receivables in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have increased/decreased profit before
income tax by HK$341,000 (2018: HK$164,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial liabilities will fluctuate because
of the changes in market interest rates.

31 December 2019 —Z—

41.

n‘l-ﬁ

B E SRR EE

NET=RA=+H

B E b EE

rEERZHEEMEMEENEE BB
HEKLCEHRELCEHRWFIR -
AEE-REBERTEAEESRT
ﬂ?iZIEH e ARSMNE R - F R

SERE  RBESRBRRKRAER

D/\

HN\

AEBE v EERRERTIHZEINS R
MG A EAM - WERKESREHEAR
SEPBRBABEIFZE - EFER
SRREER s R 2BEE - Effit
N

(a) MRS

E¥RRESRIAZAFEERE
RRB D ERINERE T & F) iR
BRER - AERERINEEXRE)
AEZMSERR  TREANEEE
BUREEE I ERIIEZET
RITRESR R E A R WGRIANER » &
EERRRNEEIELBIT -

RZZE—hAE+—A=+—H8 =K
‘ﬁﬁ%‘ﬂﬁ;‘%ﬁ%/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁi
B3% * BIBRFTERANEF S S

n,/ w 42341,0008 T( = & —J\
F 1 164,000 70)  ZBURE DT
fE““FﬁﬁEW‘%%((tE%%IJ%,%&

?i\ o

(b) FIEEBR
MEEBRESBRBE LA TFEER
R mE R TSN EE M HEK
BoRRBRE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

152

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
interest-bearing borrowings are disclosed in Note 28.
Bank borrowings in Note 28 at floating interest rate
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk. The
policies to manage interest rate risk have been followed
by the Group are considered to be effective.

In 2019, as the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. At 31 December 2018, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$659,000 higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on bank borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
account receivables from sales of natural gas, loan and
interest receivables, and the other receivables and
deposits that were further explained in Notes 22 and 24
to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the
Group principal financial assets are the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and bank balances placed
in financial institution and reputable banks separately.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any credit risk exposure for those financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances. For
credit exposures to customers, Group management has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. For credit
exposures associated with the refundable deposits and
loan receivables, Group management had assessed the
credit quality of the debtors, taking into account their
financial position, their business developments and other
factors. In addition, the Group ensures that the amount
of the loan is within the limit set by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Accounts and note receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts and
note receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and expected credit losses
for account receivables as at 31 December 2019:

Sales of natural gas: HERAR :
Current (not past due) BNEA (REER)

Loan and other receivables: JrE UL 3k Kz L i FEE Ui
FRIE ¢
More than 1 year past due BHR T FLAE

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

41. BIRERERE &)

() FEER#E)
AEEUAERZHEBREESR
ZEEERBURI R EE 2 EE
B AR AEBBAAEZEEEE
KEBRITEBRIRRF S 2 BB
BEXBEREE  WERBEHMRR
B CEBRETEEAEETR
ERBEHEEE—FED -
TERREEEEAN -_Z—NF+=A
=t —HBARSEERRKMERE
EERRERIBHEERBECER

2019

—E-NF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER REAE EERE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FHET FET
0.003% 148,348 4
100.00% 37,100 37,100
185,448 37,104
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41.

154

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts and note receivables (Continued)

Sales of natural gas: HERAR
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER)

Loan and other receivables: JE U B SR N A W A
More than 90 days past due @ HI90 B A

41. BIERERE &)
(c) =ERME)

0l

FEWRF R FIR (&)
2018
—N\FE

Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TE B R % REAE EEEE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FEIT FET
0.03% 439,739 143
100.00% 37,100 37,100
476,839 37,243

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited R EI&E R ZR AR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—h&+=A=+—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) BT &)
Credit risk (Continued) (0 EERBE)
Accounts and note receivables (Continued) FEWBRF R Z1% (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FANEBREWIRGR BERERE
account receivables during the year is as follows: E PN
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&H% 37,243 37,100
Expected credit losses recognised RENER 2 TEREREEE
during the year - 143
Expected credit losses reversed FREHEEEERLD
during the year (139) -
Balance at 31 December RT+ZA=+—Bz&& 37,104 37,243

(d)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of account receivables contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance during 2019:

—  Repayment of account receivables net of those
settled resulted in an decrease in loss allowance of
HK$139,000.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

(d)

AT J& USR5k B T 4 (B 2 B K
BH_T— ﬂiﬁq}iﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬂ-

— BEERUERIRCEER
RE)EHEBEEERD
139,000 T ©

REE R

AEBZBRBERERB AT RE
HRPHESHFE  UWHEREERRE
WA HE WENEEHMERE
BZRPDESHEE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

156

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payment, is as follows:

At 31 December 2019

RZE-hE+ZA=1-H

Other payables and accruals HthENFUEREER
Lease liabilities HEGE

Due to a shareholder ER—4REE
Convertible notes THREE

At 31 December 2018

R-Z-\F+-A=1—-H

Other payables and accruals AR FERESER
Due 10 a shareholder ER—AREZE

Bank borrowings RITEE

Convertible notes THREE

41. BEEKREE &)
d) REELERREE)

AEEZERABNSHRERRE
REHNRBBRNR BB B ERN

T
Within
one year or In the In the third After
ondemand  second year to fifth years five years Total
R-%FR
FHRER REZF RE=ZLF RAEH -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr FAT FAr FEn FAT
712,367 66,000 - - 778,367
11,261 3,325 - - 14,586
29,551 - - - 29,551
- - - 679,670 679,670
753,179 69,325 - 679,670 1,502,174
Within
one year or In the In the third After
on demand second year to fifth years five years Total
R—ER
FIREK RE-F RE=ZRF RAFHE ECh
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr FET FEr
444,768 90,400 67,800 - 602,968
39,363 - - - 39,363
70,533 - - - 70,533
- - - 679,670 679,670
554,664 90,400 67,800 679,670 1,392,534
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of not
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, and other measures taken by the management as
referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31
December 2019.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities. All
of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity
price had been 5% higher, the profit for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have been increased by
HK$1,553,000 (2018: HK$3,074,000). Had the relevant
equity price been 5% lower, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit.

A IS SRR BE

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-_A=+—H

41. IR EMRERE &

(d)

(e)

REBESER(E)

EZCFAEHASEREAE RS
BRI+ @A AR
eREFILREEEFRDRMNEME
e (A04R & B 75 3R 2= BT 53 3(b) (i) A1
i) REASEBHEERCTEESR
& INENBZZE—ALE+=A
=—+—HRBF =@ AR 28t
HELE -

B mERR

AEBAZDBEREERF A
TAMELZBAEBREFHEAR -
IERERED /LMD -

AEE 2z EMRERT BB AT L
me BARBHEBRESF ZRETY
RERERERNZFRRERER R
HfTRBEERAZ L BARAEE
BZRBESTEEL - REMAE
REASEREZRBETED M
EZTEDBE -

T EERFHBRE DT RN
WEMRBRAEERBRET © WK
NE®EEAS% AIBHE-ZT—H
FH+-_A=Z+—HLEFEZEHNE
# 01,553,000 T (ZF— NF :
3,074,000 7T ) © B IR A (E S
5% Bl¥afgaemEE
RERFE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 41. BIERERE &)

158

()

(9)

il

Categories of financial instruments () eWMIADE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Financial assets: SHMEE .
Financial assets at fair value through R ATFEEFAEZRZ
profit or loss SREE 31,064 61,476
Financial assets measured at amortised IZ# AT EZ @A E
cost (including cash and cash (BIEREMNERIRE)
equivalents) 417,536 539,998
Financial liabilities: SRAaE
Financial liabilities measured at R AT EZ
amortised cost TRAE 896,696 765,265
Fair value (9) AFEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

respective fair values.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7
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42.

43.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciql Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 May 2020.

31 December 2019 —Z—

42.

43.

A IS SRR BE

NEFT=A=+HH

AVEER

RYEEEMS2EEZHARFERS
EEFRXZTHEEESKEEERR
BERZ B - TXEREARERQF
BEBR 2 AFEEFNE  EHANTE
RNFEEZGETEBABEY K=
AR -
FRBARE : AKEARFTERH
FERBRMGER A
REEXBEREZ
WECREHE) -
“HRBARE . AR RZBREMN
SNeEESBBZE
EEALEETIR SE PN
B -
F=RBABE: BEXRBEZTUE
REABUR ©

REEZ BRANERE R BRI
RED B RERRN = EERA 2 (ETH
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A B S R R
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFBBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2—_Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Results

RE

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Loss/(profit) attributable to
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

BEERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Attributable to owners of
the Company

160

Y

RRETSBATER, (B518)

Pt ()R

REZmA,/(BE)

IR ELER
Ca M)

ARAEE ARG
A/ (E1R)

BEMRE
EREEEE
iy 3

AREHEB ARIE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZT-N\F ZT—+F ZT—F ZZT—hF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
158,060 477,789 13,039 1,117 7,399
(185,168) 138,229  (241,627)  (165,489) (1,283,919)
111,677  (111,041) 6,774 2,801 2,483
(73,491) 27,188  (234,853)  (162,688) (1,281,436)
1,139 356 (657) = =
72,352 27,544  (235,510)  (162,688) (1,281,436)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—¥-hE —B-\F —T—tF “T-AF —T-8F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FEr
2,417,204 2,411,573 2,349,479 2,337,043 2,656,320
(896,696) (776,914)  (648,239)  (531,380)  (559,467)
(10,804)  (12,306) (11,780) = (753)
1,509,704 1,622,353 1,689,460 1,805,663 2,096,100

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B gE R B2 RA R A 7



€
ila

WWw.chenergy.com.hk



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	行政總裁報告與管理層討論及分析
	董事之履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底

